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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council November 7, 2024

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to amend an agreement with Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (Vendor 177203), Concord, NH, Project #'s 68033B; 68034C, by
increasing the price limitation by $140,600, from $2,611,000 to $2,751,600, effective upon Governor and
Council approval, with no change to the end date of June 30, 2025. The original agreement was approved
by Governor and Council on June 14, 2023, Item #59. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this amendment is available in the Fiscal year 2025 budget:

04-96-96-964010-2916 FY 2025

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $140,600

EXPLANATION

NHDOT has approved a request to amend funding from Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section
5311 Rural Area Formal Program funds (Section 5311) by $104,700 from $1,894,000 to $1,998,700 and
approved an increase from Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Individuals with Disabilities
Program (Section 5310) by $35,900 from $717,000 to $752,900 for a total price limitation increase of
$140,600. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. provides transportation
services in Merrimack County utilizing Section 5311 and Section 5310 funding to support eligible
activities including operating, capital, mobility management, and volunteer driver programs.

CAPBMCl is a private, non-profit organization that provides rural public transportation, including
transportation for seniors and individuals with disabilities, in Concord as Concord Area Transit (CAT).
Inclusive of this amendment, CAPBMCl will receive $752,900 of Section 5310 funding and $ 1,998,700
of Section 5311 funds for an amended agreement total of $2,751,600. Details relative to each funding
program and CAPBMCl's award of these funds are outlined below.

The Department's SFY 2025 operating budget includes funds from both Section 5311 and Section 5310
that provides funds for capital, planning, operating assistance, contracted services and mobility
management for public transportation in rural areas with populations of less than 50,000, seniors and
individuals with disabilities in New Hampshire.

JOHN O, MORTON BUILDING • 7 HAZEN DRIVE • P.O. BOX 483 • CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483

TELEPHONE: (603) 271-3734 • FAX: (603) 271-3914 • TDD: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 .WWW.NHDOT.COM



CAPBMCI, in conjunction with its regional partners as applicable, will provide the remaining required
non-federal matching funds. If Federal Funds become unavailable, general funds will not be requested to
support this program.

The Amendment has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the
Department has verified the necessary funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2025 budget.
Copies of the fully executed Agreement are on file at the Secretary of State's Office and the Department
of Administrative Services, and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the
Department of Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

William J. Cass, P.E.
Commissioner

Attachments



AMENDMENTTO AGREEMENT

This Grant Amendment ("Amendment']) is entered into this 17th day of October > 2024.
by and between the Slate of New Hampshire, acting by and through the New Hampshire
Department of Transportation, 7 Hazen Drive, Concord NH 03302-0483, (hereinafter referred to
as "State") and Community Action Program Belknap, Merrimack County Inc. (CAPBMCI)
(hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), collectively referred to as ('the Parties").

WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into a Grant Agreement, approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 14. 2023, Item 59. (hereinafter referred to as "the Grant");

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Grant as provided in this Amendment; and
j

WHEREAS, the Grant allows for amendments by an instrument in writing executed by both
Parties;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions
contained in the Grant, and set forth herein, the ^arties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

.  Section 1.8, "Grant Limitation" of the G-1 form is amended to read ($2,751,600)

2. Amended Exhibit C. Budget. C.I be amended to include an additional $ 104,700

of Federal FTA 5311 Rural Area Formula Program Funds, and an additional
$35,900 of 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities,
for a revised contract price of $2,751,600;

a. Table below

3. This Amendment hereunder shall become effective upon approval by the New
Hampshire Govemor and Executive Council.

4. Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this
Amendment, the Grant, and the obligations of the Parties hereunder, shall remain in full
force and effect with the terms and conditions set forth herein.



EXHIBIT C

BUDGET (REVISED)

Program Funding SPY 2024

FT A Section 5311

SFY 2025 Amendment
Revised

Total

Administration $300,000 $300,000 529.300^ $626,300

Capital Preventive Maintenance $123,000 $123,000 $4,700

Capital ADA $124,000 $124,000 53,000

$250,700

$251,000

Operating $400,000 $400,000 $57,700 $857,700

Rural Transit Assistance Program
(RTAP) - eligible training & technical
assistance

'$0 $0 $10,000

Total FTA Section 5311 Funds $947,000

FTA Section 5310

$947,000 $104,700

$10,000

$1,998,700

Contracted Services $235,182 $235,182 $35,900 $506,264

Mobility Management Activities $19,840 $19,840 $0 $39,680

Regional Mobility Manager $103,478 $103,478 $0 $206,956

Total FTA 5310 RCC Funding $358,500 $358,500 $35,900 $752,900

Total FTA Funds I $1,305,500 $1,305,500 1 $140,600 I $2,751,600
1

Amended Total Grant Funding $2,751,600

b. Funds are contingent upon Federal appropriations.



FN WITNESS WHEREOF, (he Parties hereto have set their hands to the date first-written

above. '

Community Action Program Belknap. Merrimack Coiintv Inc.

Jeanne Aori CEOBy:
PrirW Name aHd Title

NH Department of Transportation

By:_

Date: October 17, 2024

Date: ]ajI1 1 /

PrmU^toie and Title MichcIIe L. WintCrS of Aeronautics, Rfli
Rail

Approved bv Attorney General

 & Transit

Print Name and lTtIe/Z.-^/ / 3 T ^
x>

Da te; ^

^n-e

Approyed by Governor and Council

G &C Item number: 0 &C Meeting Date:



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMAGK,COUNTIES,

INC.

EXHIBITS TiO CONTRACT

J:r.. i..

Amendment j
Certificate of Good Standing

Certificate of Corporate Vote

Cerliftcalc of Insurance

FTA Certi fications, and - Assurances

FTA Master Agreement

2 CFR Part 200

FTA Section 5310

FTA Section 531 1

G&C Approved item 59 June 14,2023



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of Stale of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERiUMACK COUNTIES, INC. »."» a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation regi.stcred
i

lo transact business in New Hamp.shirc on May 28, 1965. 1 furtHer certify thai all fees and documenis required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and Is In good standing as far as this ofTicc is concerned.

Business ID; 63021

Certificate Number: 0006656579

as

uu

15o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOK,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



COMMUNIT
BELKNAP^MER
E M P O W E I? I N G C

Y ACTION PROGRAM
RIMACK COUNTIES, INC, ̂
OWMUN.'F'FS since 1965

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Christopher J. Pvles. President. Board of Directors hereby certify that.
1

I

1  I am a duly elected officer of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on March 14. 2024. at which a quoaim of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Exectitive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operating Offtcer/Deputy Director, Jlii Lesmerises, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Christopher J. Pytas, Chair, Board of Directors are duly
authorized on behalf of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. to enter
into contracts or agreements with the State pi New Hampshire and any of its agencies or
departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions,! or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

'3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force
and effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.
This authority was valid thirty (30) days prior to arid remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of
this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire
will rely on this certificate as evidence that tijie person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that
there are any limits on the authority of any list^ individual to bind the corporation in contracts
with the State of New Hampshire, all such limita ions are expressly stated herein.

Dated; / 70 Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Christophpr^. Pyles-
Title: Presideftf Board orarectors

Rov 3/14/2024
CAPBM COA 2024

Mailing Address P.O. Box 1016. Concoid, NH 03302 Admmistrudve OfBce 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, NH
Phone; 603 225-3295 j 1 800 856-5525 TTY/TDD 1 800 735-2964 Fax; 603 22S-1898

Website: capbm.ocg



aC^ro' certificate OF Ll>|tBILITY INSURANCE
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATTVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR'ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, | = t
IMPORTANT: if the certmcete holder Is sn ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poUcy(lee)-must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provlelons or be endorsed,
if SU8R0GATT0N IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and condltione of the pdli^.'ceftain'pollclee may require an andorsemenL A statement on
this certificate doea not confer rights to tho cortlflcato holder In lieu of such ondorsement{s).- '

PROOUCEA 1

Cross Insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Streel

Manchester NH 03101

Samb: Stephanie Pcfler
(603}66fl-321B (603)645-4331

AOOREss' '"i®oc'i certs®aossagency.com
INSURBRIS) ArrOROMO COVERAGE NAIC«

MSURER A; SHecttve Insurance Co. of SC 18259

INSURED

Cnrrvnunity Action Program Befknap-Merrimsck Counties Inc.

P. 0, Bo* 1016

Concord NH 03302 ]

McuRCR o - Slate Heailh Care c/o MidwesI Employers Casua 23612

Prsu P ER c * ^ ederal Ins Co 20281

INSURER D: ■'

INSURER E .-

fNSURERF;

COVERAGES CERTIFtCATE NUMBER: 24-25 AH lines REVISION NUMBER:
"HIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE P0LICI5S OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
IfVDICATEO. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR'OTHER DOCUMENT WtTH RESPECT TO VWflCH THIS
CERTIFICATE .MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES'DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOVAJ .MAY HAVE BEEN SEDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IN&R
Lie rrPB OF INSURANCE POUCY MUM8ER ■'

POdOVEFP
IMMAJOrtVYYi

. PduevEXP
IMMfiOrrVYYt UMITS I

A

X COMMERCIAL OQNERAL LIASIUTY

E  1 ^ OCCUR

S 2508040

•s, ,

.  ' ■■

10/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE ,  1.000.000

1 CLAIMS-MAO DAMAGE TO PE//TE0
PREMISES (Ea occurraoea)

, 1,000,000

MEG EXP (Atrt ana partan) ^ 20.000
10/01/2024 PERSONAL « AOV INJURY ,  1,000,000

GENlAGCReOA7EUM»TAPflJES PER GENERALAGGRECATE , 3,000.000

[2^ LOC
oiHER Profesaional Liability i PRODUCTS • C0MPR3PAGG , 3,000.000

X Professional Liability %  1.000.000

AUTOMOeiLE UAanjTV

S 2509940

J

"10/01/2024 10/01/2025

r£a aeddaon s 1,000,000

X ANYAUTO

iHEDULEO
ITOS
J"OW»ICt>
IIOSONLY

BODILY INJURY |P« pWMm] s

Z1 OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
.HIRED
AUTOS ONtY

SC
AL

eOOH-Y INJURY (Pa# acddant)
1 »X

. AL
PftOPCRTYOAMA.ee
fPar acodann s

s

A
5 UMBREUA UAB

EXCESS Lua

1X OCCUR

CLAMS-MADE S 2509840 10/01/2024 1  10/01/2025
EACH OCCURRENCE , 5.000,000

J 1 AGGREGATE , 5,000,000

! OEO 1 X| RETENTION i ° |

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION
ANO EMPLOYERS'UABIUTV

ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXeCUTIVE Cm
OFFICERiWEMeEREXCLUOEO* "
(WandaierylnNHI ^
B yn, dMcnOa undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERAnOSS Dalow

NT A HCHS20240000547 (3a.) N!H  ' - 01/0t/2024''.
, 1

bi/01/2025

PER OTK-
^ STATUTE ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT ,  1,000,000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE , 1,000.000

E.L DISEASE • POUCY UMIT ,  1.000,000

C
Directors S Officers Liability

J06511302 M/dl/2024 04/01/2025

Limit

Deductble

$1,000,000

$5,000

0BSCRIPT1ON OF OPCRATIONS / LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORO 161, AddWorxl Ramtrka Schadul*,'

(JooF: Job Type: OoT]
stale of NH. Dept of Transportation is included as an Additional Insured wUh respect to 0
above named insured. In accordance with NH law. carrier will give 60 days advance notic
10 days.

My M attaehad If mo'ra tpac* U ra^utrad)

eneral Liability arid Auto Liability as per written contract with the
£ of canceNation'or non-renewal, except (or non-payment which is

CERTIFtCATE HOLDER CANCELlATtON:.'

State of New Hamp&hire Dept of Transportation
7 Hazen Drive

PO ao.x 483

Concord NH 03302

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED FOLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED (N
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHOPIZEO REPnaSENTArrVE

AC0R0 25 (2016/03) The ACORO name and logo are
O199B-2015AC0RD CORPORATION. All rights reterved.

registered tnerke of ACORO



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2024 CERTIFICATIONS AJMD ASSURANCES FOR FTA

ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS
(Signature pages alternate to providing Ccrlifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant: Community Action Program BeUuiap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: {check here) X

Or,

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:

Category

0! Ccrtificalions and Assurances Required of Every Applicant

Certiflcatiop

02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

09 Fonnula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program

Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities andTow or No Emission

Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Certifications and Assurances

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs

13 Stale of Good Repair Grants

14 Infrastructure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight [

17 Demand Responsive Service

18 Interest and Financing Costs

19 Cybersecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and
Operations |

20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program

^ERTIF^CATJO^^S AND ASSURAiNCKS signature PAGE

I

AFnRMATlON OF APPLICANT
I
I

Name ofthcApplicam: Commtinily Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc.

Fiscal Year 2024

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalf of the Applicant. I declare that it has duly authorized me to make these
Certifications and Assurances and bind its compliance. Thus, it agrees to comply with all federal lows. rcgtilQtinns.
and requirements, follow applicable federal guidance, and comply with the Certifications and Assurartccs as
indicated on the foregoing page applicable to each application its Authorized Representative makes to the Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) in the federal fiscal year, irrespective of whether the individual that acted on his or
.her Applicant's behalf continues to represent it.

Tite Certifications and Assutances the Applicant selects apply

later seek federal assistance to be awarded by FTA during the

to each Award for which it now seeks, ot may

federal fiscal year.

The Applicant affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances It has selected in the
statements submitted wiih this document and any other submission tnade to FTA, end acknowledges that the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986. 31 U.S.C. § 380lje/«9.. and implementing U.S. DOT regulations,
"Prograra Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 CFR part 31, apply to any ccnificaiion, assurance or submission made to
FTA. The criminal provisions of 18 U.S C. § 100! apply to any certification, assurance, or submission made in
connection with a fedctai public transportation program authorized by 49 U.S C. chapter 53 or any other statute



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

In signing this document, I declare under penalties of perjury thai the foregoing Certifications and Assurances, and
any other statements made by me on behalf of (beApplicant are true and accurate.

Signatuf

Name  jeanne Aari, Chief Executive Officer

Date:

Authorized Rcpreieotatjvc of Applicant



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement
rVpiaiXai'n) ̂ TinuifHtrt^liMH

Revised 07/11/2024

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name ofSubrecipient Agency: Community Action Program Be/knap-Merrimack Counties,
inc. '

I

Community Action Proeram Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.. shall comply with all
applicable federal laws, regulations, and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances.

This award includes information required by 2 CFR Part'200 as follows:

FTA award prelect description: (As required to be,responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA)

Amount: $35,900

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 20.513

FTA Award Name: FTA SFXTION 5310 ENHANCED MOBILITY OF SENIORS &

INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES PROGRAM

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): rJH-2021-016-01

Federal Award Date: 9/1/21

Contact information for sub^awarding official:

Name: Frederick J. Butler Title: Public Transpoijtation Administrator
Email: Frederick.J.Butler@dol.nh.gov Phone: 6C
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

3.271-2565

Subrecipient Information:

Subrecipient Name: Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Subrecipient SAM.GOV I.D.: F44JKSNJDJM6

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Jeanne Agri

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: Executive Director

Federal Clauses: N/A |
Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: N/A j
(An approvedfederally recognized indirect cost rale negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal
Government or. ifno such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect co.U rale as defined in §200.-414 Indirect (F&A) costs,
paragraph (j)).



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement
iff TtiiiH)H>ni>nan

Revised 07/11/2024

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date; 6/14/23 End Date: 6/30/25

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated bv this action (aereement/amendment):

For FFY: 2025 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $:^5,900
i

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipieni (oneinal aBretment A amendments)-.

For FFY: 2025 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $752,900

Pass-through reQuirements:

The Subrecipicnt, Community Action Proeram Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. agrees to
meet all requirement imposed by the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipicnt so that
the Federal award is used in accordance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of the Federal award. ,

The Subrecipicnt, Community Action Proeram BetknaD-Merrimack Counties, Inc. agrees to
any additional requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipicnt
in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT to meet its own responsibility to the Federal
awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required financial and performance
reports. ,

The Subrecipicnt, Community Action Proeram Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. agrees to
permit the pass-through entity (NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipienls records
and financial statements as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this
part; and appropriate terms and conditions conceming closeout of the subaward.

Date: 10-17-2024

Name of authorizing subrecipicnt official: Jeanne Agri

Title of authorizing subrecipicnt official: Executi /Cf^irector

Signature of authorizing subrecipieni official:



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement
Di'fUtHnifnt »/ Trtitofuuiaiian

Revised 07/11/2024

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement
I

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit i^dministration (FTA)
Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire (department of Transportation (NHDOT)

I

Name of Subrecipient Agency: Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. '

Community Action Proeram Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc., shall comply with all
applicable federal laws, regulations, and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances.
This award includes information required by 2 GFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (As required to beresponsive 10 the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA)

number: 20.509

Amount: $104,700.00

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA'

FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5311 (RURAL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION

PROJECT SOLICITATION

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NH-2021-017

Federal Award Date: 9/8/21

Contact information for sub'awarding official:

Name: Frederick J. Butler Title: Public Transportation Administrator
Email; Frederick.J.But!er@dot.nh.gov Phone: 6('3-271-2565
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient Information:

Subrecipient Name: Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Subrecipient SAM.GOV I.D.: F44JKSNJDJM6

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Jeanne Agri

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: Executive Director

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: N/A
(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal
Government or. ifno such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the .subrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414 Indirect. (F&A) costs,
paragraph (f)). i



jTfe^

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement
tVc^iUnrM ̂ Trtfirj^Mtna/ZuK

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date; 7/1/23 End Dale: 6/30/25

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated bv this action faereement/amendmeMi:

For FFY:'2025 Section: 531 1 Amount: $l04,70b.00

Revised 07/11/2024

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecioient (orieinal aefeemem a amendments)-.

For FFY: 2025 Section: 531 I Amount: $1,998,700.00

'^Pass-through reauircments:

The Subrecipieni, Community Action Proeram Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. agrees to
meet all requirement imposed by the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that
the Federal award is used in accordance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of the Federal award.

The Subrecipient, Community Action Proeram j ieiknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. agrees to
any additional requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient
in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own responsibility to the Federal
awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required financial and performance
reports. i

The Subrecipient, Community Action Proeram Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. agrees to
permit the pass-through entity (NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipients records
and financial statements as necessary for the pass'-through entity to meet the requirements of this
part; and appropriate terms and conditions concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date: 10-17-2024

AgriName of authorizing subrecipient official: Jeanne

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: Executive pjrector

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official:



FFY 2024 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2024 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipients to corriply with the requirements contained in the
agreement in order to receive Federal Rindsl The language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT).

1 acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2024 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the term of the
agreement.

Community Action Proizram Bclknap Merrimack Counties
Name of Agency [

Michael Tabory. COO

Name of Authorized Official

Date

Signature
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AW hA*Hpji!r0 THF ST A TE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DtPARTMFl^Of TRASSPORTATIOS

Wiam CasXt PA

Commtssiomer

m,ian.Cass.P.E.

Andre Briere, C*iomd, VSiAFiBET)

Deputy Commissiimer

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council April 26,2023

State House

t:oncord, NH 03301

RKOtKMI P A( IIOIN

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into an agreement with Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (Vendor 177203), Concord, NH, for an amount not to exceed
$2,611,000 for transportation services for the period July 1. 2023, through June 30,2025, effective upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this agreement is contingent upon the availability of funds in Fiscal Year 2024 and Fiscal
Year 2025, with the ability to adjust cncumlwances through the Budget OfTice between State Fiscal Years
if needed and justified.

FY 2024 FY 2025

04„96-%-964GI0-29I6

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $1,305,500 $1,305,500

EXPLANATION

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (C APBMCl) has been awarded Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with
Disabilities (Section 5310) funds, in the amount of $717,000. and FTA Section 5311 (Section 5311) Rural
Area Formula Program funds, in the amount of $ 1.894,000. for a total contract amount of $2,611,000 to
provide transportation services in Belknap and Merrimack Counties.

CAPBMCI is a private, non-profit organization that provides rural public transportation, including
transportation for seniors and individuals with disabilities, in Concord as Concord Area Transit (CAT).
For the FY 2024-2025 biennium. CAPBMCI will receive $1,894,000 in Section 5311 funds and $717,000
in Section 5310 funds for the Region 3 Mid-Slate Regional Coordinating Council (MRCC) service area.
CAPBMCI's total contract for transportation services is $2,611.000 and details relative to each funding
program, and CAPBMCFs award of these funds, arc outlined below.

The Department's proposed SFY 2024 and 2025 operating budget includes funds from Section 5311 that
provides funds for capital, planning, and operating assistance for public transportation in rural areas with
populations of less than 50.000.

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING • 7 HAZEN DRIVE • P 0. BOX 4a3 • CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483

TELEPHONE (603) 271-3734 • FAX (603) 271-3914 • TOO RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 •WVWV.NHOOT CCDM



The Department released a public notice on February 16,2023, announcing the availability of Section
5311 funds. Applications for requested funding were due on 21,2023. The Department received
applications for six (6) rural publjc transit systems and awarded funding to each transportation sy^em.
The systems and their respective application scores'are as follows:

Transit System
1

Applicant
Average

Score

Concord Area Transit Community Action Program Belknap-Merfimack Counties, Inc.
fexistins services) i

83% .

Advance Transit Advance Transit, Inc.lfexistina services) ' 81%

City Express VNA at Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services
(existing services) ^ 76%

Sullivan County
Transportation

Southwestern Community Services (existing services)
76%

North Country Transit Tri-Countv Community Action ProRram (existina services) 74%

Advance Transit Advance Transit. Inc. Ifcxpansion -eveninfi services) . ' 73%

Advance Transit ' Advance Transit, Inc. Ifexpansion - Saturday services) 73%

Carroll County Transit Tri-County Communi^ Action ProRram (existing services) 72%

An evaluation committee that consisted of the Public Transportation Administrator, Fred Butler, Transit
Grants Coordiiuitor, Paula Devens, and the Transit Compliance Specialist, Cathy Cormier reviewed,
evaluated, and scored Section 5311 applications based on criteria as indicated in the application materials
and the Departrnent's State Management Plan for FTA programs. The evaluation matrix is provided below
for reference: i

1  Evaluation Criteria. Weight

The proposed service efFcctivcly addresses an NHDOT policy goal (per statewide transit
study) and/or the proposed service is a continuation of existing services.

15%

. The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to operate its
service and demonstrates successful experience in providing transportation services.

30%

The application demonstrates an effort to involve the private sector in the delivery of
3 transportation services as well as involvement in and support for the project, financial and

otherwise, on the part of citiuns and local government.

20%

The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and effectiveness, measured in*
4 ridership, service miles and hours, costs, and fare ijecovery as applicable. New applicants
must demonhrate the ability to measure performance and achieve goals.

15%

g The application shows coordination with other traiUportation providers in the service area:
public, nonprofit, and for-proflt. / . |

10%

g The applicant complies widi relevant Federal and state regulations and has a history of .
compliance with regulations and reporting requirements. *

10%

4ote: Every application met the Department's criteria for incliision in its SFY 2024-2025 public
transit funding plan and will be awarded separate amounts for the transit ̂ tems.



.FORM NUMBER G^l(ver«l0D 11/2021)

Subject: SFY 2024-2025 FTA Section 5310 RCC Region 3 - SFY 2024 - 2025 RA-Section 5311

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hercb>|
Miifualiy agfce as follows;

GENERAi, PRO Visions

1.1. Statc/Agency Name

NH Departrhent of Transportation ^

1.2. State Agency Address

PO Box 483 A-Hazen Dr. Concord, NH
03302rO483

1.3. Grantee"Name '
Community/trtion Program Belknap-Menrimack Counties, Inc.

1.4. Gr^tee Address
2slndustrlal Park Drive,PO Box 1016;

Cohcordi NH.03302-1,016

f.5 GrantcePhone #

603^225-3295

1.6. Account Numbe

04-96-96r964010-29
72-500575

6-0

1;7. Compietiohpate

June 30, 2025

i;;8. Gr^t Limitation

$2,6.11,000.00

r\9.;Grant Officer for State Agency

Frederick Butler; Public Transportation, Administra
BiJreau oyRaji & Transit

or.

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-2565

If.Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signing this form we certify,^al we have complin with
any nubUc racetlnE reauirement for acceptance of Ihis granti inciudirig if applicable RSA 3i:95-b."

^I'tl l. Grantcc Si^ture I
4/27/2)23

■

1.12: Name & Title of Gr^t^'.Signer I

Jeanne Agri, Chief ]Executive;Ofricer

Grantee Signature 2 ( )
N/A

Name & Title of Grantee Signer 2

N/A

Grantee Signahirc 3
N/A

' Name & title of Gr^tw Signor 3

1.13 State Agency, Si^aturc(s)

^ tt- i/ir
1

I.l4. Naniie^& Title oi^Statc Agency Signor(s)

- Diitctor ofAenniaotici Rafl db T^^

• As. Approval by.Attomey General (Formj Substance.ahd Execution)" (ifG &'^G,ap'proyal required)

By: Assistant Attorney QcJsFalr On:
OF STATE jui,,,

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In cxchanige for grant funds provided by tlie State of New.HampsHirc, acliniB
through the Agency identified in block l.l (Hereinafter referred to as "the State")^ the Grantee identified in
block 1.3 (hercinaftcr referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified 'and more particularly
described in the "scope of work-attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (thcscopc of work, being hereinafter referred to
as 'nhe Project"). '
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4.

4.1.

4,2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

Si.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

S.

«:i.

8,2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

ARKA.COVERED. Except «s oChcTwisc »pccincxlly provided for herein, ihs
Gnnree thall pcrfoon (he Project in, and wth icspect to. the Slate of New
Hantpiihire. | 9.2.
RFKECnVR DATE; CQMPLETION OF PROJKCT. |
lliis Agreement, and atl obtiguions of ihc parties hoeunder. shall become
effective on the date on the date of approval o'f this As^enieni by ihc Governor
and Cooncil of (he State of New Hampshire if rct^uired'(block l.'G). or.upon 9.3.
ligiixture by Uic State Agency as shONvn in block 1.14 ("the KfTcctivc Date"). 1
Except as otherwisctpccirtcallyprov'ided herein, the Project, including all repohs 9.4.
icttuired by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the daieiin
block 1.7 (hereinafter refened to as '*cbe Completion Date"). {
GRANT AMOUPrr; LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: ..VOUCHRMS:

PAYMENT. -i"
The Grant AmoufM is idcniir>ed and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C, 9.5.

- attached hereto.

The manner of. end schedule of payment shall be as set fonh in EXHtOIT C. iO.,
In accordance with the prm-ijioiis set forth in E?UilBIT C, and in consiJoaiion
of Ihc satisfactory performarKC of the Prujcci, as determined by the Slate, and at
limited by subparagnph 5.5 of lliese fcnertl provisions, the Slate thaJJ pay iIk
Grantee titc Grant Amount. The State shall tkilhhold from the arnoitm othemiw

payable to the Grantee under this subparaKrafdt 5.3 those suhh required, u'
pemtiKed, to be withheld poisuant to N.H. RSA S0:7jhrough 7-c. - |
The payment by the State of the Gnni ainburu sliall be the only, and the coinplele
{uymem to the Grantee for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by die
Cnnieb in the performance hereof, and shall be ihc only, and the complete. 11.
compcnsafion to ilte Grantee for the Project. The Stale shall have tin liabiiilies io I I.I.
(lie Cranicc other than the Cram Atnuunl. \ • |
Notwiihsianding anything in this Agreement to ihe contrary, and notwithstanding 11.1.1
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments aulhurizcd. 11.1.2
or actually made, hcrcunder exceed the Grant iimiiacion set forth in block 1.8 uf M.I.3
these general provisions. | II.1.4
COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In 11.2.

connection with (he performance of the Project, .the Grantee shall comply with all
statutes, laws regulations, a.nd orders of federal, state, county, or municipal 11.2,1
•utbonties which rfull impose any obligaiiou or duty upon the Graniee, iiKluding
the acquisition of any and all necessary permits and RSA 31-95-b.
KECORPS and ACCOUNT.S. ' |
Ucrwccn ihe Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Complcuon
Date, unkss otherwise required by the grant tenits or the .Agency, the Grantee 11.2.2
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection with (hie
Prujcci. including, but not limited lu. costs of administration, inirisportaiion.*
insurance, iclcphonc calls, and clerical matcriab and services. Such accuunis
shall be supported by receipts; invoices, bills and other shnilar documents. •- |
OcrwecR the EtTcclive Oete'and the dale seven (7) years after the Compieiirw 11.2.3
Date, unless olherMise required by the grant icrms or the Agency pursuant to
subpantgrepb 7.1. at any (imeduring the Grantee's normal business hours, and as 1 1.2.4
often as the State shall demand, the Grantee slwil (tiakc availabtc to the State al|
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The firanice shad 12.
permit the State to audit, examine, trtd reproduce such records, and in make audits 12.1.
of all cnntracts. invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, daix (as that
(cnii is hereinafter defined), and other infonnation relating to lU maaers covered
by this Agreoncni./AsiSsed (A,lh|s pang^b.^'Grafite^Mludes all pcraons!
.(ulural cr'rictimal.'^natetl'unth'rcon &y, 'uiul^TOmnton ownership
u-iih. Ihe e^lilyidenli^led^d (he Grantee In block 1.3 of (hese provisions
PRRSOiNNEI^ 12.1

1*110 Graniee fhail, ai its oust expense, provide all personi\):l ngccssaiy to perform
(he Project, five Grtrxce warrants thai all petsonhel cngsigcd-in'thc Project shall
bequxiificd to perform such Project, acrd shall be properly licensed arvl authorirxd
in p^orm such Project luxlcr ail applicable laws.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not permit any siibcohlracior. subgrantee.''
or other person, firm or cerporalion wiih whom it is engaged in a combined effort
to perform the Project, to hire any person xvho has a cocKracRial relationship wiibl
the SusU. or who is a State officer or employee, elected or appuinted.
The Crani Officer stuli be.the repres<ntaii\-e of the Slate hcreundcr. in the cvcni
of any dispute hcreundcr, the interpretation of this Agreemeui by ihe Gnni
Omccr, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final.

DATA: Rf-TTNTION OF DATA: ACCES&
As used in (his Agrecoient, the vrord "data" shall mean all informacibn and things
dc\-eioped or obuined during performance of. or acquired or dirvcirrped by
reason of. this .Agreemeni. including,,but nut limited to. all iiudics, reports, files.
fomtuUc, sumyi. maps, cherts, sound rccordinpi. video recordings, piciorial
rqtrodueiiOAS. drawings, analyses, graphic rcpicscntatinns.

I2..V

12.4.

13.

Page 2 of 3

computer prrtgrams, cotiiputcr printouts; notes. Iclitrrs. memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether fin'tshcd or itnrmiihed.
Between die Effective Date and the Completion Date (he Grantee shall grant tn
(he State, or any person designated hy it, unrestricted access to all data for
cxBininMion, duplicatiw; publication, ira.isU(k>n. sale, disposal; or for any - ""y
purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United Slates t^r any other counit,, oy
enyocK other ihan ihe Slate.
On and after (he Effeoive Date all data, and any propeny which has been received
from (he Stale nr purchased with ftinds provided for tha: purpose, under this
Agreement, shall be the propeny of ihc State, and shall be returned to the State
upon dcmartd or upon temiirtaiion of (his Agreement for any icasor., whichever
shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shell have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use. in whole or in part, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR ACHKKMK-iM\ Kwwithsiandmg anything in
(hi.t Agreement lu the contrary, all obligations of the State hcrcunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hcrcunder. arc contini^cr.t upon
ibcavailabiliiy or continued appropriation of ftinds; and in nomcni shall the Siaie
be liable for any paymcno hcrcunder in excess of such available or appropriated
funds, in the event of ■ ledueiion or icniiinaiion of those funds, the State shall

have (he right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever, and
slial) have (he right to rcrroinate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Cranicc notice of such lenninaiiun.

EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Anyone or more ofthe following acts or omissions of the Graniee shall connituie
an event of default hercunder (hereinafter refened to as "Evcnii ufOcfauii"};
Failure to pcrfomi the Projcci sulisCKloriiy'nr on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or
Failure to mflmtxin. or permit access to. the records requited hcreundcr: or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants end conditions of this Agrccmen:.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any oisc. or more,
or all. of (he following aciions:
Civc the Grantee a written notice xpecitying the Event of Default and requiring it
to'be remedied within, in the ̂ encc of a greater or lesser specification of time,
thirty (30) days frDin the date of the notice: and if the Event of Dcfauli is not
timely remedied, lemiinaic this Agreement, cITcctivc two (2) days after giving ihc
Grutee notice of icnninatiofl: and
Give the Graniee a written norice specifying Ihe Event of Default and (uspcnding
all payments to be made under (his'Agieemeni and ordering that the portior
Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Grantee during the , J
from, the date of such notice until such ihnc as ihc Siaie determines thai ihc

Grantee has cured (he Event of Default shall never be paid to (he Grantee: and
Set ofT against my other obligaiiofl the State may owx to the Grantee any damages
(he Siiic suffurs by reason of any Event of Ocraulc and
Treat (he agnrcment as breached andpunucany ofits remedies at law or in equiry.
or both.

TEKiMliNATK^N.

In the event of any early lerTOinalioa of this Agrcentent for any reason other than
the completion of the Projeci, the Grantee shall deliver tu ihe Crant Officci. not
later than Hftcen (15) days after the date of tennination. a repon (hcremoftcr
referred to as the 'Termination Report") describing in dciaii ail Project Work
performed, and the Gram Amount earned, to and including the date of lemiination.
In the cvcni of Tcmtination under paragraphs 10 or 13.4 of these gattrai
prm'isions, ihe approval of such a Tennination Rcpon by die State shall eiuiilc
the Grantee to reccive.that portion of the Craai amount earned in and including
the dale of tennination.

In (he evcni of Termination under paragra^ 10 or 12.4 of these general
ptuvtsions.- the approval of suclt a Termination Rq>on by the State shall in no
eveui relieve the Cranicc from any and all liabiiiiy for damages sustained or
incuiTcd by (be State as a result oflhc Onmicc's breach of iis obligations
beieundcr.

Nolvrichstaading anything in this Agrccrccat lo'lhe contrary, either the State ur,
exixpl where notice default has been given to the Cianiee hcreundcr. the Graniee.
may terminate this Agreemcnl without cause upon Ihin>-(30>'d3ys nritlen notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST- No ofTjeeT. member of employee of the Grantee,
atxl no reprc«cntaii\-^ officer or employee of the State of New Hampshire or of
the governing body of the locality or localities in which ihc Project is to be
perfonrKd, who exercises any ftmciiotu or responsihiliiies In the review or

Contractor Intials*^! \



15.

16.

approvtl of ihe vndvrtaking iw carryins out of ttfch Projecc, ihall prikips(e-in
■ny ckcUion relating to ihia Agreement which tffects bis or hex personal interest
or ibc interest of aoy corporation, pwincrship, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly inuresied. nor shall he or she have any pcnooal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agrrcn>cni or the proceeds thereof.
GR^\NTkF.'.«; RF.LATION TO THF. f^AXK. In the perfofTTwtKc of [this
Agreement (he Grantee, its empbycn, and any subceoiracior or subgranicc of
tbe Grantee are tn ill rapects independent conir&c(ors. and arc tKither agms
nor employees of (he State. Nciihcs the Grantee nor any of its ofTioen.
employees, agents, members, subcontnicton or ssdrgrintees. shall have tutboriry
to birwj the State nor are they cndiled to any of the beaefns. workmen's
compensation or emoittments provided by the Stale to its employees. |
ASSICN.MKAT AND SUBGONTHACT.S. The Grantee shall not assign er
eihciM.'isc transfer any interest in this Agreement without Ihe priirr wTiticn
cooscnf of the Stale. None'of the Project Work shall be subi^lracieii or
subgnnled by ihe Graniee other than as set fonh in Etbibii B without the pnor
written consent of the State. ^ |
INPtvMMFIC/\TIQN. 'fhc Grantee shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmlns the State; its officcn and employees, from and agiinsi any and^ ail
losses sufTcrcd by the State, its ofTiccn and employees, and any and all claims,
liabiUlics or penalties asserted agsirm the State, its ofTicera and employees,' by
or m behalf of any person, on account of. based oit, resulting from, arising but
of (or which may be claimed to arise Out oO >hc acts or Mnisskms of the Grantee
or subconbmctor, or subgramcc or otha agent nf ihc Orenicc. Notwiihstandicg
the foregoingi nothing herein cotuained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver
of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is bereby reserved to
the Sute. 1'his covenant shall surv-ivc the lenitination of this agreement. j
INSURANCE."
Tbe Grantee shell, at its own expense, obtalu and maintain in force, or shall
require any subcontractor, subgrintcc Or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the foilowng
losurance: ^ I
Statutory wotkera' compensation and employees ItabilUy insurance fur 'all
employea engaged in the pcrfnnnance of the Projecc and j

17.1.2' General liability insurance against all claims of hodily injuries, death « propeny
dantage. in amounts net less than SI,000.000 per occuircncc and S2.000,0i00
aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incidcnC and S500.000 for propeny
damage in any one incident; and

17.

17.1

17.1,1

17.2.

18.

IP.

20.

21.

22.

U.

24.

7'hc policies described in subparagraph 17.1 ofthit paragraph shall be the standard
form employed in the Sute ol'New Htntpshirc, isst^ by underwriters aceirprable
to tbe State, and auihoriaed to do business in the State ofNew Hampshire. Ortnice
shall furnish to tbe Suie, ceniftcaics of insura'tKC for all renewal(t) of insurance
required under this Agreement no later thin ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each iruurarKC policy.
WAIVER OF nREACtl. No failure by the Sute to enforce aoy prmnsions
hcrcofaherany tvcnt of Oefaultshall be deemed a n-aiver of iu ri ghts with rega.'d
to that Event, or any subsequent E^%nt. No caprcss.waavcr ofany Event ofDc fault
shall be deenicd a wai%%r of any pro'x-isicru hereof. No such fsihitt of waiver
shall be deaned a waistr of the right of the State to enforce each and all of ihe
proNisions Itcrcof upon any further or other default on the pan of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a ptny hocto to (he other pi.ny ̂ all be deented to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by ccniflcd iral, postage
prepaid, in a United Sates Post OfTicc addressed to the panics ai the addresses
fitrt above given.
AMEA'nMKNT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an insiniment in writing signed by (he panics bereio and only after approval of
such amendaieni, waiver or discharge by the Cuvemor and Council of the State
of New Hampshtre. If required or by the signing Suic Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERhtS. This Agrcemeni shall
be construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshiic. and is
binding iqtcn and inures to ibc benefit of the pinii.-a and their respective successoa
and assignees. The captions and contents uf the "subject" blank arc used only as
a matter of convenience, and are no( to be cons'idered a pan of thb Agreement or
to be used in determitung the intend of tho pa.ties hereto.
THIRO I'aUTIFA The parties hereto do t>oi intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be cortstrued to confer any such bcitcfii.
EPrn R R A G H EE^f KWT. This Agrteatenl, which maybe executed in a number
bfcounteipans. each of which shall be deemed an original, constiruies the entire
agreement and understanding bcrwecn the parties, and suposedes all prior
agreements and uodet^iaBdings (daimg hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional oi modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto arc incotporated as pan of this agrconeni.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES,
INC.

EXHIBITS tIo CONTRACT

EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT B

EXHIBIT C

EXHIBIT D

Special Provisions

" Scope of Services

Budget

Vehicle List

Certificaie of Good Standing

Certificate of Corporate vitc
Certificate of Insurance

FTA Certifications and Assurances
1

FTA Master Agreement |

DOL Special Warranty - Unified Protective Arrangement

j

2CFR Part 200

FTA Section 5310

FTA Section 531 1

Social Service Documents to Include:

501 (c)
Financial Report
Board of Directors

Key Personnel and Salaries
Resumes



Revised 04/18/2023

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

A.I. Amend G-I Section 2. "SCOPE OF WORK" by adding the following:

2.1. The Grantee may change services as described in Exhibit B, Scope of Services (hereinafter the
"Services") only with the prior written agreement of the State and in accordance with applicable
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requirements.

I

A.2. Amend G-1 Section i3. "AREA COVERED" by adding the following:

3.1. Services may extend to adjacent states* with prior written approval from the State. The State
reserve the right.to require formal cost allocation measures.

A.3. Amend G-l Section S. "GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS:

PAYMENT" by adding the following: '
5.6. As applicable based on Federal participation ratios, the amount paid by the State to (he Grantee

shall not exceed 50% of allowable operating costs less fare revenues plus 80% of allowable
administrative and capital costs. Operating, administrative and capital costs are identified in
Exhibit C. The Grantee shall provide andjdocument the availability of local funds sufficient to
meet the project cost in excess of the Grant Price Limitation.

j

5.7. In the event that revenues exceed the total allowable costs, said revenues in excess of total
allowable costs shall be placed in an interest-bearing account within 30 days of the Completion
Date and made available to the State upon demand.

5.8. The Grantee shall submit a requeslTur payment tu the State uii a funii specified by (lie Slate on a
monthly or quarterly basis, together with all inforrriation to support the,request. Such requests for
payment shall be properly completed and signed. Requests for payments must be for allowable
costs only as dcfmed in 2 CFR Part 200. No requests for advance payment will be accepted by
the State.

5.9. Upon receipt of the request for payment,
allowability of costs. In connection with t
the Grantee shall produce) and inspect any

the State shall review the request to determine the

lis review, the State may demand production of (and
documents and records described in Section 7.

5.10. Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records required
by the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount due and owing to
the Grantee and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions of this Agreement.

5.11. Final Payment. The Grantee's provision
condition precedent to final payment.

of all reports required under this Agreement is a

A.4. Amend G-I Section 6. "COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS" by adding the following:
I  '

The Grantee shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for6.

6.2.

employment, notices setting forth the provisions of the Federal Title VI non-discrimination
requirements.

The Grantee shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all qualified
applicants will receive consideration for cmploymcni without regard to race, color, age, creed,
sex, or national origin.
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The provisions of 2 CFR 200 shall .apply to local administration of this agreement'and any
subgrantec under this agreement. ' |

A.S. Amend G-1 Section 12. "TERMINATION" by adding the following;

12.5. The Termination Report must be approved by the Slate and the Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) prior to final payment.

12.6. Completion of Services; Payment of Price. Excepting those obligations of the Grantee which, by
the terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the completion of the
Services and upon payment of the Grant Rrice, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereundcr, shall cease and neither party shall have further recourse under the Agreement.

A.6. Amend G-! Section 9. "DATA; RETENTION OF DATA; ACCESS" by adding the
following: j

9.6. The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of this
Agreement:

9.6.1- Except for its own internal use, the Gnntec may not publish or reproduce such data in
whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Grantee authorize others to do so,
without the written consent of the State, until such (ime as the FTA may have either
released or approved the release of such data to the public.

9.6.2 As authorized by 2 CFR 200, the FTA reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to authorizc-others to
U.SC, for Federal purposes, any work idevcloped under a grant, cooperative agreement,
3ub-gmnt, or third porty grant, irrcspicctivc of whether o copyright has been obtained; and
any rights of copyright to which a recipient, sub-recipient, or third party contractor
purchases ownership with Federal assistance.

9.7. It is the FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the
Grantee understands and agrees that in addition to the rights set forth in 9.6 (b) above, the FTA
may make'available to any recipient, subgrantee, grantee orsubgrantee its license in the copyright
to the date derived under this Agreement or a copy of the data first produced under this
Agreement.

9.8. The Grantee shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the State and United States, their officers,
agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any liability,
including costs and expenses, resulting frorn any willful or intentional violation of the proprietary
rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction,
delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this Agreement.

9.9. Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to the United States under any patent or be
construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the United
States under any patent.

9.10. Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 above are not applicable to material furnished to the Grantee by the
State or United Stales and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement; provided that
such incorporated material is identified by the Grantee at the time of delivery of such work.

9.1 1. In the event that the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under the project
shall become subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the State or the FTA
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may direct.

A.7. Amend G-l Section IS. "ASSIGNMENTS/AND/SUBGRANTEES" by adding the following:

15.1 The Grantee shall cause the provisions of;lhis grant to be inserted in all subgrants for any work
covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each subgrantee; provided,
however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to subgrantces for standard commercial

supplies or raw materials. The Grantee shall take such action with respect lb any subgrant as the
State may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance.
The Grantee shall ensure that any subgrantee has obtained all licenses, permits or approvalsrequired for the performance of.grant Servjiccs.

A,8. Amend G-l by adding "DEFINITIONS" as Section 25:

25. DEFINITIONS 1
I

ALLOWABLE .COSTS: Costs that are' incurred in the performance of the Services which
satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200. 1

FTA: U.S. Department of TransponationJ Federal Transit Administration (
'  1

PROJECT APPLICATION; The narrative, charts, figures and/or maps submitted to the State
detailing the scope of the public transportation program of the Grant as modified and approved
by the State.

REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation services
being provided by the Grantee. Revenues also include funds from subgrants, contracts, purchase
of service agreements, and excess matching funds that directly benefit the transportation service.

SECTION 5311; Section 53II of the Fe"d|ral Transit Act of 1964, as amended.
SECTION 5310: Section 5310 of the Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act (FAST), as

amended.

I

STATE: The Stale of New Hampshire, acting through the Department of Transportation, Bureau
of Rail and Transit. |

A.9. Amend G-1 by adding "ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTINGREQUIREMENTS" as Section 26: j
26. ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

26.1. Ledgers. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall establish and maintain ledger sheets for each budget
category. Entries shall be made and shall reflect the financial activities of the Grantee. The ledger
sheet must be in a form approved by the State! The ledger will indicate the funds remaining in each
line item of the Grant Budget at the beginning of each month. Entries shall be made on a running
basis and carried over to the following month;|that is, figures will be brought forward cumulatively.
Grantee shall also prepare and submit to the Slate a profit and loss statement quarterly if such
information is not provided with invoices, j

I

26.2. Accounts Receivable. The Grantee and/or jsubgranlcc shall deposit all revenue in an interest-
bearing account with a banking institution in this State. Grantee shall prepare and maintain receipt
vouchers for all revenue. Immediately upon receipt, Grantee and/or subgrantee shall credit all
revenue to the appropriate receipt account. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall establish and maintain
an Accounts Receivable Ledger. The receipt number appearing in the Ledger shall correspond to
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the receipt voucher number. A receipt voucher must be completed on a form approved by the State
and shall identify each component of every deposit. All appropriate supporting documents for each
deposit should be attached to the receipt voucher.

26.3. Payablcs. Grantee and/or subgrant'ce shall prepare vouchers to document all expenditures of fiinds.
The voucher shall include the following information and shall be prepared on a form approved by.
the Slate: The Division and account numbers from which the funds will be drawn, the date of
.expenditure, a voucher number running in sequence, and any appropriate comments supporting the
expenditure of funds (e.g., invoices and payroll vouchers). All invoices received by the Grantee
shall be checked for accuracy and allowability. Each invoice must be approved for payment by the

.  Grant Manager or dcsignec. Immediately upon payment. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall make
entries to the appropriate ledger sheets documenting payment. (Bach subgrantee shall identify a
Grant Manager). ,

26.4. Voucher, and Receipt Register. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall establish and maintain two
registers that will contain a running total of all payable receipt vouchers. The registers will provide
a summary of voucher or receipt numbers! amount, and purpose of action. No self-designated
abbreviations are to be used. !

26.5. Check Register. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall maintain a check register. This register is also
considered a book of original entry and is posted to the ledger immediately.

, * 1 .

26.6. . Time Sheet, Taxes, and Benefits. Grantcc'and/or subgrantee shall require each of its employees
to I) submit weekly lime reports designating work-performed and time.spent on such work, or 2)
be included m an indirect cost allocation plan approved by the cognizant Federal agency. The
Grantee shall summarize tirhc reports by task and apply employee's rales of pay to the hours
worked. The Grant Manager shall review completed and signed time reports and cause them to be
pO-StcH to the. apprnpriatr. ratrgory in thr. general ledger. The Grantee .?hall maintain rennrds of

employee payroll and hencrit.s and .shall post this information to the appropriate category in the
general ledger. The Grant Manager shall ensure that all payments arc on a timely basis.

"  . \ \
26.7. Reimbursements. On a monthly basis, the Grantee shall submit a description of Grant activities,

in a format as required by the Stale. Should ihc Grantcc show a profit for any'month, the Grantee
shall apply the arnount of profit against'subsequent reimbursement requests. The Grantee shall
agree to provide information in addition to the monthly narrative'at such times and in such manner
a.s the State may require, and to prepare any reports which may be requc.sfed by the .State including

but not limitcd'to a final or termination report if operations cease.

26.8. Maintenance of Records. The Grantee shall keep and maintain the records, documents, and
accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The Grantee
shall maintain, and make, available to the State and the FTA, records relating to complaints and
comments received' from'the public. In the event the State disputes the Grantee's operations or
records' as submitted for payment or otherwise, final resolution shall rest with the State.

26.9. Audits and Inspections. Between the Effective Dale and the Completion Date, and for a period of
three (3) years after the FTA grant is closed or the date of resolution of all matters relating to this
Agreement, whichever is later, at any lime during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as often

■ as the State or the FTA may demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State and the FTA or
' their dcsignces all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. THc Grantee shall

permit the State and the FTA to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits of"
all contracts, grants, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, Data (as defined in C-l

. section 9.1) and other information relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used in

this paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons; natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or
under common ownership with, the entity identified w the Grantee in 1.3 of G-I.

26.10. Independent Audit. The Grantee shall submit one audit done by one Certified Public Accountant
(CPA) for the entire project, or, as the State rnay require, for any part of the project upon demand.

I
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I  ,

Monies required for payment of the audit shall be set aside in the Grant Budget for that specific
purpose. ! . ,
•26.10.1 In the event the audit reveals that monies are due and owing to the State from the

Grantee, for whatever reasons, the Grantee shall pay to the Slate such sums-wiihin thirty
(30) days of the audit date. j

26.1 1. The Grantee shall submit quarterly perforrnancc, dmg and alcohol, and charter activity reports
within 30 days of the end of each quarter and shall submit any forms, information or reports
required by the State to complete the FTA's National Transit Database (NTD) reporting.

26.12. General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS). The Grantee shall generate and keep updated General
Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data and submit related data for reporting to the National Transit
Database (NTD) as required. The Grantee shall submit related data to the State upon request.

A.IO. Amend G-1 by adding "PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND.REAL PROPERTY" as Section 27;

27. PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL
apply to all equipment and real property
through this or other Agreements between

PROPERTY. The following terms and conditions
purchased in whole or in part with funds provided
the State and the Grantee:

27.1. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular 4220.1 F and
future amendments, and'with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR Parts 661 and 663.

27.2. All vehicles shall be purchased by the State unless the Grantee has received prior approval from
the State to procure vehicles. |

j

27:3. All other equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred ($500) per unit shall be purchased by
the Grantee subject to the prior approval of the State.

I
1

27.4. Title to all project equipment funded or otherwise provided by the Grantee shall be in the name
of the Grantee; provided, however,, that the Grantee shall give the State a security interest in all
such equipment at the time of purchase and shall execute financing statements and do all other
acts necessary or useful to the perfection of that interest and the renewal thereof. In connection
with the purchase of any motor vehicles pursuant to this Agreement, the'Grantee shall give the
Stale a security interest in (he motor vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take all steps
necessary to protect the Stale's security interest; including taking steps to identify the Stale as a
lien holder of such motor vehicles on the motor vehicle titles. J

27.5. In the event that this A^cement is terminated, all project equipment and property become the
property of the Siate and it is understood and agreed that legal'title to such equipment shall be
transferred to the State as soon as feasible. jProject equipment will be disposed of in accordance
with FTA Circular 9040.1G and the State Management Plan unless written approval is received
from the State. |

A.I I. Amend G-l by adding "EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION" as section 28:

28. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Grantee shall maintain a current inventory listing of
all Project Equipment and Real Property involved in this Agreement. The Grantee shall submit
to the State a certification that the Project Equipment and Real Property as.,referenced in Section
27, is still being used In accordance with the terms of the A^'grecment. The inventory listing and
equipment certification shall be supplied to the Slate on an annual basis beginning June 30, 2024(year). ' j

A.12. Amend G-l by adding "EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE" as section 29:
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29. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. The Grantee shall be responsible for the maintenance
^  and repair of all equipment used in the I Services described in Exhibit D. The Grantee shall

maintain all such equipment at a high level of cleanliness, safety, and mechanical soundness. The
Grantee shall certily that a proper maintenance plan that meets or exceeds the original equipment
manufacturer's preventive maintenance guidelines is followed. Vehicle maintenance plans must
be approved by the Grantee's Board of Directors. All maintenance, repair and physical
improvement activities on equipment shall be conducted by the Grantee and at d' location
specified by the Grantee. The Grantee shall notify the State of any changes in this location. The
Grantee ftirther agrees to maintain, repair! or make any physical improvement to equipment as
requested by the State. The State, the fTA', and/or their designces shall have the right.to conduct
periodic inspections for the purpose of confirming proper maintenance and repair.'

\  . I
A.13. Amend G-1 by adding "REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS" as section 30:

30. REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS, jxhc Grantee shall maintain a complete and up to date
record of all motor vehicle repairs and shall make such records available to the State and the FTA
upon demand. |

A. 14. Amend G-I by adding "VEHICLE STOR^ACE" as section 31:
31. VEHICLE STORAGE As applicable, with respect to any motor vehicles purchased in whole or

part under this Agreement, or maintained under this Agreement, the Grantee shall park,or garage.
each vehicle so as to ensure maximum available protection and safety for each vehicle. The

Grantee shall also ensure that each vehicle-will be parked or garaged in such a manner that its
daily operations arc not impaired or curtailed by conditions of weather .or any other
circumstances. Tlic Grantee shall nulify the Stale of the lucatiun uf (he parking or garaging site
and any relocation. |

I

A.IS. Amend G-1 by adding "TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW" as section 32:

32. TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW. The State may require participation In (raining courses
determined to be essential to FTA program management in this grant period and may require
participation in such training programs as|it deems necessary by drivers and other employees
involved in the transportation of the public. Training may include defensive driving, passenger
assistance, emergency procedures and periodic refresher training every three (3) years. The
Grantee agrees that the State shall have the right to review the performance of all drivers who arc
employed in connection with this Agreement, and to disallow the use of any driver whose
performance as a driver is determined to be unsatisfactory by the State.

A.16. Amend G-1 by adding "SAFETY REQUIREMENTS" as section 33:

33. SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. As applicable, all project equipment shall be inspected and
certified by the Department of Safety and shall meet all applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards .and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations as required by the United States
Department of Transportation, and by thcjNew Hampshire Department of Safety under RSA
266:72-a, in the purchase and operation of all project equipment.

33.1. . As applicable, the Grantee shall provicic the State with full, and prompt written notification
of any accident involving any vehiclcjused in its Services. In addition, the Grantee shall be
responsible to report any accident in compliance with Stale law.

33.2. The Grantee shall submit to the State by February 15 of each year a report covering the

previous year (January I through December 31), summarizing the results of its alcohol
misuse prevention and anti-drug programs on FTA approved forms. This shall be in
compliance with 49 CFR Part 655.
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33.3. The Grantee shall submit any dalaydocumentallon related to FTA's Transit Asset
Management or Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan purposes as required by
NHDOT for cohfipiiance purposes. \

AM. Amend G-l by adding "SERVICE LIMITATIONS" as section 34;

34. SERVICE LIMITATIONS. The Grantee shall not engage in'thc provision Services other than
those described in Exhibit B, or outside Ithe service area described in Exhibit B, without the
written consent of the State and, as applicable,, without obtaining the appropriate operating
authority. The Grantee shall nofcngagc in charter or school bus operations except as permitted
by 49 CFR Parts 604 and 605, respectively.

I  ■ ■ . ^
A.I8. Amend G-l by adding "GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS" as section 35:

35. GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS. The Grantee warrants that with respect to the Services to
be performed,Mt has obtained all iiccnscsjpermits, or approvals which arc required by any law,
order or regulation of any authority, state or federal, or which may be necessary for the
performance of the Services-hcreundcr. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Services shall be qualified to perform such|Services and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Services under all applicable laws.-

A.19. Aiiiciid G-l by adding "LABOR PROVISIONS" as section 36:

36 LABOR PROVISIONS. The Grantee agrees to adhere to the terms and conditions of the Unified
Prtiteclivc Arrangement, Section 5333(b) |of 49 USC 53 or as amended, incorporated herein for
the .protection of the employees of any employer providing transportation services assisted by

}  this Agreement, and the employees of| any other surface transportation providers in the
transportation service area identified in Exhibit B.

A.20. Amend G-l by adding "PATENT RIGHTS" as section 37:

.37. P.4TENT RIGHTS. If any inventinn. improvement, or discovery of the Grantee is conceived or
first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under this grant, which invention,
improvement or discovery may be patcntablc under the laws of the United Stales or any foreign
country, the Grantee shall immediately notify the State and provide a detailed report. The rights
and responsibilities of the Grantee and the State with respect to such invention, improvement, or
discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable Federal laws, regulations, policies,
and any waiver thereof I

I
»  I •

A.21. Amend G-1 by adding "BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION" as section 38:

38. BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION, [rhc Grantee warrants-that it has not employed or
retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee,
to solicit or secure this Agrcerhcnt; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or
person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee, any fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other considcratiori, contingent upon or resulting from the
award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the Stale shall have
the right to annul this Agreement without liability or,, in its discretion to deduct from the
Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage, brokerage fee, gift] or contingent fee.



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EXHIBIT B

.  SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. The Grantee, Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties, Inc.,
(hereinafter the "Grantee") shall provide the following public transportation scrvice(s);

a. Fixed Route, demand-responsive, and/or route deviation public transit services in
the Greater Concord Area as detailed in the "Project Description" of the Grantee's
application to the New Hampshire Department of Transportation, Bureau of Rail
and Transit (hereinafter "the State") for Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
Section 5311 funding. The Grantee's application is hereby incorporated by
reference and made part of this agreement.

i

b. Serve as the lead agency for Region 3 Belknap-Mcrrimack, for FTA Section 5310
RCC funds to provide accessible transportation services to seniors and individuals
with disabilities in cooperation wjilh the Region 3 Belknap-Mcrrimack RCC. The
Grantee's 5310 RCC grant application is hereby incorporated by reference and
made part of this agreement. Thej Grantee agrees to provide all services indicated
in the grant application unless modified per this agreement.

2. The following terms and conditions apply to all of the FTA Section 531 1-funded public
transit services provided by Grantee pursuant to this agreement:

'  I ■ • ' '
a. The State may require the Grantee to provide additional transportation services or

to reduce transportation services provided under this contract. Any alteratiohis to
such transportation ser\'iccs shall |be submitted in writing by the State to the
Grantee. The Grantee shall implement the alterations within thirty (30) days

b.

unless a different tlmeframe is agreed to by the State and the Grantee.

The Grantee may request to revise transportation services, as submitted in the
Grantee's grant application to the Stale, to add, reduce, or adjust transportation
services provided under this contract. Any alterations to such transportation
services, including alterations for the provision of service to special events, shall
be requested in writing by the Grantee to the State for approval at least 30 days in
advance. Revisions subject to a public comment period shall be requested at least
60 days in advance.- Upon approval of the State, the Grantee shall implement any
alterations wjlhin thirty (30) days
State and the Grantee.

c.

unless a difTerent timeframe is agreed to by the

The Grantee shall not change, add, or delete any route or make any fare, service,
or operating schedule adjustments without the prior written'agreement of the
State, except in an emergency situation. In such an emergency, the Grantee shall
notify the State no later than the next working day following the day of such
changes. Such emergency changes will be valid for a maximum of five days;
thereafter, the written approval of|the State shall be required to continue such"
emergency changes.

d. All project vehicles, including those Federally funded vehicles outlined in Exhibit
D, Project Equipment, as identified by their Vehicle Identification Numbers, as



well as any additional vehicles utilized for the project, shall be used in accordance
with all applicable Federal and State laws as well as NHDOT requirements.

I

3. The following terms and conditions apply to all of the FTA Section 5310-funded services
for seniors and individuals with disabilities provided by Grantee pursuant to this
agreement: |

a. The State may require the Grantie to provide additional transportation services or
to-reduce transportation services provided under this grant. Any alterations to
such transportation services shall be submitted in writing by the Stale to the
Grantee. The Grantee shall implement the alterations within thirty (30) days
unless a difTcrcnt timeframe is agreed to by the State and the Grantee.

I  •

b. Mobility management activities, and as applicable, transportation services, -
subgrantees, and maximum reimbursement rales, shall consist of those submitted
in the Grantee's 5310 Regional Coordinating Council (RCC) application or as
subsequently modified by NHDOT through written notification to the Grantee.
Further amendments to mobility management activities, transportation services,
subgrantee's, and/or maximum reimbursement rates require RCC approval, as
documented in official minutes, as well as written approval from the State.

c. Eligible Regional Mobility Manager expeiises shall Be limited to those directly
related to the position's role as described within the 2016 "New Hampshire
Statewide Coordination of Community Transportation Services Plan" and/or
within the most recent "New Hampshire Statewide Mobility Manager Network: A
Blueprint for Implementation", both hereby incorporated by reference. Roles may
be further modified based on those recommended by the Statewide Coordinating
Council (SCC) and approved in writing by the State.

d. All services provided shall confoi|m to FTA Section 5310 guidelines. Per FTA
requirements, the Grantee shall be responsible for oversight of subgrantees andcontractors relative to FTA requirjements.

e. The Grantee shall ensure the provision of ADA-accessible services within the
RCC region. Any marketing materials, brochures, and other service information
shall describe it as ADA-accessible. It is acceptable for a subgrantee/lower tier
subrecipient that does not utilize accessible vehicles to contract with an accessible
provider in order to meet this requirement.

The Grantee must fulfill its contractual obligations and provide its scope of
services throughout the grant period regardless of expenses exceeding the
maximum allowed to be reimbursed. As necessary, the Grantee shall establish trip
priorities to ensure funds are not expended prematurely.

/

g. The Stale may require the Grantee to provide additional transportation services or
to reduce transportation services provided under this grant. Any alterations to
such transportation services shall be submitted in writing by the State to the
Grantee. The Grantee shall implernent the alterations within thirty (30) days
unless another timefi'ame is agreed to by the State and the Grantee.



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EXHIBIT B

BUDGET
I

I. The Grant price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, are FTA Section 531 1
and Scction,5310 portions of the eligible f)rojecl costs. Federal (FTA) f\inds are granted as
follows: _ '

FTA Section 5311 i SFV 2024 SFV 2025

Belknap-Merrimack Counties 1
Administration 1 $300,000 $300,000

Capital Preventive Maintenance i $123,000 • $123,000

Capital ADA " 1 $1-24.000 $124,000

Ooeratine ' 1 ■  $400,000 $400,000

Total FTA 5311 Fundinc 1 $947,000 5947,000

Two-vcar FTA 5311 Funding Totals ' $1,894,000

N  i

FTA Section 5310 RCC t SFV 2024 SFV 2025

Contracted Services i $235,182 $235,182

Mobility Management Activities i $19,840 $19,840

Regional Mobility Manager 1 $103,478 $103,478

Total FTA 5310 RCC Funding $358,500 $358,500

Two-year FTA 5310 RCC Funding Totals l $717,000
1

Total Federal (FTA) Funds S1,30S,S06" $U05,500
•  .

Total Two-Ycar Grant Funds $2,611,000

11. Not less than fourteen days prior to the submission of the Grantee's ftrst request for
rcimbursenient, the Grantee shall submit to the State a budget incorporating all funds to be
expended in the provision ol services pursuant to this Grant. Budget revisions may be made
with written approval of the State.

TIT. The Grantee may seek reimbursement for these funds by submitting a monthly or quarterly
invoice for the total eligible expenses, less agency match as applicable to State. The invoice
must include verification of source(s) of matching funds and statements from service "•
providers, as applicable, to support the request for matching funds.

I  ,

IV. Mobility management costs shall be itemized and include such information as required to
support the request. i -

V. The Grantee will verify that trip reimbursernent is for non-Medicaid-eligible trips only.

VT. For expenses other than contracted services, the Grantee may seek reimbursement only for
eligible expenses listed in the budget and detail-of-cost form provided by the.Siate, with the
exception of funds specifically reserved, if any, and identified in "Specifically Programmed
Funds," at the end of this Exhibit.



VII. At the sole discretion of the State, the Grantee may carry forward-any unexpended portion
of the federal funds included in" the Grant Price to a subsequent Grant, if any, between the
Slate and the Grantee. |



COIVtMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EXHIBIT D

VEHICLE LIST

Transit Vehicles; 15

2016 Ford E450 16 & 2 Passenger Bus #615 IFDFE4FS7GDC56663

2017 FORD E450 #617 IFDFE4FS2HDC49296

' 2017 Ford E450 16 pass, #120. IFDFE4FS9HDC78567

2017 Ford E450 Bus 12 pass, #1 19 | 1FDFE4S5HDC78565

2017 Ford E450, #616 IFDFE4FS7HDC46247

2018 Eldorado National Passport, #121 i 5WEASC8N7JH32385I

2018 Eldorado National Passport, #122 [ 5WEASC8N9JH323852 ̂

2019 Coach & Equipment Phoenix #619 1FDFE4FS1KDC68672

2019 Coach & Equipment Phoenix, #1.23 ! IFDFE4FS4KDC7I436.

2019 Coach & Equipment Phoenix, #618 IFDFE4FS8KDC68670

2021 El Dorado Passport ! 5WEEZC8N0MH192327

2021 FordE450 Bus #1 124 IFDFE4FN4MDCI4966

2021 Ford £450 Bus #1 125 1
f

1FDFE4FNXMDC14297

202.1 FordE450Bus#l l26 i
1

1FDFE4W0MDC14289

2021 Ford E450 Bus #1620 IFDFE4FNIMDC14298'



V

state of Ne^ Hampshire

Departmjent of State

CERT FICATE

I. David M. Scanlan, Secretary of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC. is a Ncw.Hampshitr Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28. 1965. 1 further certify that oil fees and documents required by the Secretary of

Slate's office have been received and is in good standing a.s far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Ccnincaic Number: 0006194067

SI op
%s

Mf

fib

o

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



COMMUNIT^^ ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERJRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. ̂
EMPOWERING C OMMUNITIES SINCE 196 S.

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Christopher J. Pvles. Chairperson. Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected officer of Community Action Program Belknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on March 9. 2023. at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Execulive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,

Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Director, l/ili Lesrherises, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Christopher J. F^es, Chairperson, Board.of Directors are duly
authorized on behalf of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. to enter

into contracts or agreements with the State jof New Hampshire and any of its agencies or
departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other,
instruments, and any amendments, revisions! or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed-and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This

authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further
certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence
that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they, have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any
listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 4/27/2023 Signature of Elected Officer

Narne: (^bfistboher
Title: Chairperson,^Bdard of Dir^

Rev. 3^9/2023
uhXlAPOucOAttia

tors

Mailing Addiess P.O. Bo* 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Adminisirative Office 2 Indusidal Park Drive, Concord, NH
Phone: 603 225-3295 I 1 800 856-5525 m^/TDD 1 800 735-2964 Fax:603 228-1898

I  -

Websiie: capbm.oi:g



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCEA^CORO
...

THIS CERTIFtCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSUReR<S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

DATE (MiiuoDftnrro

12^20/2022

"important; II the certlllcale holder Is «n ADDITIONAL INSURED. Ihe policy(les> must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provision* or b« endorsed.
'BROGATION IS WAIVED, lubjecl to the twms and condlUonis of Iho policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

>ROOUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Stmet

Manchester NH 03101

Andrea NicUin

r«,. (603)669-3218 (603)645-4331
aJ^pss- 'manch.certs@crossafleney.com

1NSURER(S| AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICf

iNSiiRFR A ■ Selective Insurarxx Co. of SC 19259

NSUREO

.Community Action Program ̂ knap-Menrimacfc Counties Inc.

P.O. Box 1016

• Concord NH 03302

INSURER 0: 'Midwest Employers Casuafiy Corp 23612

MSURERC: FederallnsCo 20281

INSURER O;

nrSURER E:

MSURERF:

tTH

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE B£EN|ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTVWTHSTANOING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUClES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOSVN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID

TYee OF IKSURANCe
XDtjL

COMiiCRCIAL 6EKCRAL UAOajTY

ClA>MS4itAD6 OCCUR.

dSNX AQCREOATE UMIT APPUESTCR:

POLICY I I ̂  LOG
OTHER;

AUTOiiOeiL6 UIASU.ITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONlY

WREO
AUTOS ONLY

UKDRELLAUAB

EXCESS UAO

bCD X

SCHEOUIEO
AUTOS

NOMOWNeO
AUTOS ONLY

OCCUR

<XAIM5-MA0E

RETEMTION S

WORKERS COMPENSA-nON
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABIUTY

ANY PRCPRICTORlPARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MCMSER EXCLUDED?
(Handalenr i" NH)
II *•». dMcriS* wndgr
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS Wtow ^

0

Oiroctors & Officers LlabiUly

N/A

POLICY NUMSER

S2S09940

S2S09940

S2S09940

HCHS20220000&47 (3a.) NK

82471794

iMMAjonnrrtO

10/01/2022

10/01/2022

10/01/2022

01/01/2023

04/01/2022

(miwoo/yyyyi

10/01/2023

10/01/2023

10A)1/2023

01/01/2024

04/01/2023

LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE

TiAMACETOREmEO

M£0 EXP {Ant OM P#rw|

PERSONAL S AX)V INAIRY

GENERAL AOGREOATE

PRODUCTS • COUPOP AQG

COMUWEO SINGLE LIMiT
fE« tccMeftl)

DOOAY INJURY <P« OMon)

BOOA.Y. INJURY (P«r aeddeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
iPtrieddeTl

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

STATUTE
OTH-
ER

6.L EACHACODENT

EA. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

E.L, DISEASE • POUCYUMn

Limit

Deductible

1.000.000

1.000.000

20.000

1.000.000

3.000.000

3.000.000

I 1.000.000

S.000.000

S.000.000

1.000.000

1.000.000

1.000.000

1.000.000

s.ooo

DESCRIPTION Of OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO iel. AddlUoaai lUmwt* Sehfdult, iMV b* KlMhcd H nt6f« apaea I* rapiAfadl

Slate of NH D^ of T^nsportalion is Induded as en Additional insured with respect to General Liability and Auto Liability as per written conlrad with the
above nam^ insured, in accordance with NH law. carrier will give 60 days advance notice of cancellaUon or non-renewal, except lor noo-paymenl which is
10 days. ■

CERTIFICATE HOLDER I CANCELLATION

Slate of New Hampshire Oepi of Transportation

7 Hazen Drive

PO Box 483

Concord NH 03302

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE eXPIRATIOM DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACOROACORD 25 (2016/03)



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2023

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2023 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA

ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

I

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of ApDlicant: Community Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc. '
I

I

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: (check fiere) X

Or,

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selecced:

Category

01 Certifications and Assurances Required jof Every Applicant
I

•  (
k

02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plm

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

Certification

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Gutdeway Capital lnvestment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Inycstracnl Grants Pilot Program

11 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission

Vehicle Deployment-Grant Programs



Ccrtificalions and Assurances

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs

13 State of Good Repair Grants

14 Infrastructure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Service

Fiscal Year 2023

18 Interest and Financing Costs

19 Cybersecurity Certification for Rail Ro
Operations

20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program

ling Stock and

CBRTIFtCATIONS AND ASSURANCES SIGN'ATURK PAGE

AFFIRMATION OFj APPLICANT

N.mc of the Applicant: Gommuhity. Action P.rograiii .Beiknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.
BY SiCNfNC BELOW, on behalf of the Applicant. I dccl3fe|that it hiJ duly authorized me to make theae
Certificatioiu and Assurances wd bind its compliance.,Thus. ii agrees to comply with all federal laws, regulations,
.and rcquircmeais. follow applicable federal guidance, and ccmp\y with the CcrtificaUons and Assurances as
indicated on the foregoing page applicable to each application its Authorized Reprcsenutive makes to the Federal
Transit Administraticn (FTA) in the federal fiscal year, incspcctivc of whether the individual that acted on his or
her Applicant's behalf continues to represent it. . . .•

The Ccftificaiions and Assurances the Applicant selects appljj to each Award for which it now seeks, or may
later seek federal assisuncc to be awarded by FTA during the federal fiscal year.

The Applicant affirms the tnithfiilncss and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances it has selected in the
statements submitted with this document and any other submission made to FTA. and acknowledges ̂ ai the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986.31 U.S.C. § 3801 er seq.. and implementing U.S; DOT regulations,
"Program fraud Civil Remedies." 49, CFR part 31. apply to any cenificaiion. assurance or tubnusston made to
FTA. The critniital provisions of 18 U.S.C. §1001 apply to atiy certification, assurance, or submission made in
connection with a federal public transportation program authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other sUtute



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2023

In signing this documenC I declare under pcna)l^S|of pcijuiy
any other

Sigiiaiuxc

any other s^t^mcntsrnadc by mc on behalf of.i|^Cyi»>(iipiieant^3
tliit the foregoing Certifications and Assurances, and

fC true and accurate.

£  D.ic: 1/30/2023

Name anne Agri, Chief Executive OCfice.rl Authorized Represcnutive of Applicant



FFY 2022 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administralion (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2022 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrccipients to comply with the requirements contained in the
agrcemcm in order to receive Federal funds. |The language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampsliirc Department of Transportation (NHDOT).

I acknowledge receipt ofthe FFY 2022 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master ■,
Agreement and "understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the term of the
agreement.

Community Action Program. Belknap and
Mcrrimack Counties, Inc.

Name of Agency

Terri Paige, Transportation Director

5/6/22

Name of Authorized Ofncial

. Date

C/)cr\
Signature



, U <■ PfPtWTMfHt Of l»»HB

Office of Labor-Manaf#ment Standards

Special Warranty Arrangement

For Appliution to Other Than Urbanized and Oyer-the-Road Bus Aae&sibility
Projects

PURSUANTTO SECTION 5333(b) OF

TITLE 49 OF THE U.S. CODE, CHAPTER 53
January 3}20ll

i
The following language shall be made part of the contract of assistance by reference in the Federal Transit Administration's Master
Agreen>ent as signed by the grantee;

The terms and conditions set forth below shall apply for the protcctipn of the transportation-relaied employees in the
transportation service area of the Project As a precondition of the release of assistance by the Grantee/State Agency to any
Recipient under d^e g;ant, the Grantee shall bind the Recipient to these obligations by incorporating this arrangement into ih'e
contract of assistance between the Grantee and the Recipient(s), by reference, if a Grantee fails to comply with the terms of the
Warranty and fails to bind a Recipient as a precondition to the release o( funds, the Grantee will be a guarantor of the required
protections and the Grantee will be required to act as if it were the R^pient of funds unless atvJ until the Grantee is able to secure
the retroactive agreement of the Recipient to be bound by the lermsbf the Warranty.

I
These protective arrangements are intended for the benefit of transit employees in the service area of the project, who are
considered as third-party beneficiaries to the employee protective arrangements incorporated by referenced in the grant contract
between the U.S. Department of Transportation and the Grantee, and the parties to the contract so signify by executing that
contract. Transit employees are also third party beneficiaries to the frroteciive arrangements incorporated in subsequent contracts
of assistance between the Grantee and any Recipient.-Employees, or their representative, may assert claims with respect to the
protective arrangements under this provision. This clause creates no independent cause of action against the United States
Government.

The term "service area,* as used herein, includes the geographic area over which the Project is operated and the area whose
population is served by the Pro)ecii including adjacent areas affected by the Project. The term "Union." as osed herein, shall refer to
any labor organization representing employees providing public transportation services In the service area of a Project assisted
under the grant. The term "employee," as used herein, shall include individuals who may or may not be represented by a Union.
The term "Recipient," as used herein, shall refer to any employer(s) receiving transportation assistance under the grant. The term
"Grantee." as used herein, shall refer to the applicant for assistance; a Grantee which receives assistance is also a Recipient

Where the Department of Labor (the Department) deems it necessary to modify the requirements of this Special Warranty
Arrangement so that a particular Grantee or Recipient can continue to satisfy the roquiremenls of the statute, the Department will
issue a supplementary certification letter setting forth the aUernailve provisions to be included in the contract of assistance
between the Grantee and FTA, by reference. These terms will be made binding upon the particular Grantee or Recipient, along with
these terms and conditions, for each subsequent grant of assistance until withdrawn in writing by the Department.

(1) The Project shall be carried out in such a manner and upon such t^ms and conditions as will not atJversely affect employees of
the fiecipient-and of any other surface public transportation providerjin the transportation service area of the Project it shall be an
obligation of the Redpient to assure, thai any and ail transportation Sjervices assisted by the Project are contracted for and operated
In such a manner that they do not impair the righu and interests of affected employees. The term "Project." as used herein, shall
not be limited to the particular facility, service, or operation assisted by Federal furvds, but shall include any changes, whether
organizational, operaUonal. technolopcal. or otherwise, which are a result of the assistance provided. The phrase "as a result of the
Project." shall, when used in this arrangement, include events related to the Project occurring in anticipation of. during, and
subsequent to the Project and any program of efficiencies or economies related thereto; provided, however, that volume rises and
falls of business, or changes in volume and character of employmentjbrought about solely by causes other than the Project
(including any economies or efficiencies unrelated to the Project) are not within the purview of this arrangement.

An employee covered by this arrangement, who is not dismissed, displaced or otherwise worsened in his/her position with regard
to employment as a result of the Project, but who is dismissed, displaced or otherwise worsened solely because of the total or
partial termination ol the Project or exhaustion of Project funding shall not be deemed eligible for a dismissal or displacement
allowance within the meaning of paragraphs (6) and (7) of this arrangement.



(2) Where employees of« Recipient are represented for collective ba^aining purposes, all Prqect services provided by that
Recipient shall be provided under and in accordance with any collective bargaining agreement applicable to such employees which

is then in effect. This Arrangement does not create any collective bargaining relationship where one does not already exist or

between any Recipient and the employees of another employer, where the Recipient has no collective bargaining relationship with

the Unions representing employees in the service area, the Recipient will not take any action which impairs or interferes with the

rights, privileges, and benefits and/or the preservation or continuation of the collective bargaining rights of such employees.

(3) All rights, privileges, and benefits (including pension rights and bertefits) of employees covered by this arrangement (including ■

employees having already retired) under existing collective bargaining agreements or otherwise, or under any revision or renewal

thereof, shall be preserved and continued; provided, however, that such rights, privileges and benefits which are not foreclosed

from further bargaining under applicable law or contract may be modified by collective bargaining and agreement by the Recipient

and'the Union Involved to substitute other rights; privileges and benefits. Unless otherwise provided, nothing in this anangement

shall be deemed to restrict any rights the Recipient may otherwise have to direct the working forces and manage its business as it

deemed best.-in'accordance with the applicable collective bargaining agreement.

(4) The collective bargaining rights of employees covered by this arrangement, including the right to arfoiuaie labor disputes and to

maintain union security and checkoff arrangements, as provided by applicable laws, policies and/or existing collective bargaining

agreements, shall be preserved and continued. Provided, however, that this provision shall not be interpreted so as to require the
Recipient to retain any such rights wtiich exist by virtue of a collective bargaining agreement after such agreement is no longer in

effecL

The Recipient agrees that It will bargain collectively with the Union or otherwise arrange for the continuation of collective

bargaining, and that it will enter into agreements with the Union or arrange for such agreements to be entered into, relative to all

subjects which arc or may'be proper subjects of collective bargaining, if, at any time, applicable law or contracts permit or grant to
employees covered by this arrangement the right to utilize any economic measures, nothingih this arrangement shall be deemed

to foreclose the exercise of such right. |
I

(5)(a) The Recipient shall provide to all affected employees sixty (60) days' notice of intended actions which may result In

displacements or dismissals or rearrangements of the working forces as a result of the Project, in the case of employees

represented by a Union, such notice shall be provided by certified mail through their representatives. The itotice shall contain a full

and adequate statement of the proposed changes, and an estimate of the number of employees affected by the intended changes,

and the numher and flasiOfiration.snf any johs within the jurisdiction and control of the Recipient, inrludinp, those in (he

employment of any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21). available to be filled by such affected employees.

(S)(b) The procedures of this subparagraph shall apply to cases wt>ere notices involve employees represented by a Union for

collective bargaining purposes. At the request of either the Recipient or the representatives of such employees, negotiations for the

purposes of reaching agreement with respect to the application of the terms and conditions of dvs arrangement shall commence

immediately. These negotiations shall include determining (he selection of forces from among the mass transportation employees

who may be affected as a result of the Project, toesiablish which such employees shall be offered employment for which they arc

qualified or can be trained. If no agreement is reached within twenty (20) days from the commencement of negotiations, any party

to the dispute may submit the matter to dispute settlement procedures in aaordance with paragraph (15) of this arrangement

Unless the parties otherwise mutually agree in writing, no change in operations, services, facilities or equipment within the

purview of this paragraph (5) shall occur until after either: 1) an agreement with respect to the application of the terms and

conditions of this arrangement to the intended change(s) is reached; 2) the decision of the arbitrator has been rendered pursuant

to this subparagraph (b); or 3) an arbitrator selected pursuant to Paragraph (15) of this arrangement determines that the intendedchange(s) may be instituted prior to the nnalization of implementing prangements.
. (5)(c) In the event of a dispute as to whether an intended change within the purview of this paragraph (5) may be instituted at the

end of the 60>day notice period and before an implementing agreement is reached or a final arbitration decision is rendered

pursuant to subparagraph (b), any involved party may immediately submit that issue to arbitration urnJer paragraph (IS) of this

arrangement. In any such arbitration, (he arbitrator shall rely upon the starsdards and criteria utilized by the Surface Transportation

Board (and its predecessor agertcy. the Interstate Commerce Commission) to address the "preconsummation* issue in cases

involving employee protections pursuant to 49 U.S.C. Section 11326 (or Its predecessor, Section 5|2)(0 of the Interstate Commerce

Act, as amended). If the Recipient demonstrates, as a threshold matter in any such arbitration, that the intended action is a

trackage rights, lease proceeding or similar transaction, and not a merger, acquisition, consolidation, or other similar transaction,

the burden shall then shift to the involved labor organizaUon(s) to prtwe that under the standardsand criteria referenced above,

the intended action should not be pemtitted to be instituted prior to the effective date of a negotiated or arbitrated Implementing

agreement, if the Recipient fails to demonstrate that the intended action is a trackage rights, lease proceeding, or simitar
transaction, it shall be the burden of the Recipient to prove that under the standards and criteria referenced above, the intended

action should be permitted to be Instituted prior to the effective date of a negotiated or arbitrated implementing agreement. For

purposes of any such arbitration, the time period within which the parties are to resportd to the list of potential arbitrators



I

submitted by the American Arbitration Association Service shall be five{5) days, the notice of hearing may be given orally or by

facsimile, the hearing will be held promptly, the award of the arbitrator shall be rendered promptly and, unless otherwise agreed to

by the panics, no later than fourteen (14) days from the date of closing the hearings, with Trve (5) additional days for mailing if
posthearing briefs are requested by either party. The intended change shall not be instituted during the pendency of any
arbitration proceedings under this subparagraphfc). '' ^

(5)(d) If an intended change within the purview of this paragraph (5) is instituted before an implementing agreement is reached or a

final arbitration decision is rendered pursuant to subparagraph (b), all employees affected shall be kept financialiy whole, as if the
noticed and implemented action has not taken place, from the time they are affected until the effective date of an implementing

agreement or final arbitration decision. This protection shall be in addition to the protective period defined in paragraph (14) of this
arrangement, which period shall t>egin on the effective date of the implementing agreement or final arbitration decision rendered
pursuant to subparagraph (b).

An employee selecting, bidding on, or hired to fill any position established as a result of a noticed and irnplemented action prior to

(he consummation of an implementing agreement or final arbitration decision shall accumulate no benefits under this

arrangement as a result thereof during that period prior to the consummation of an implementing agreement or final arbitration
decision pursuant to subparagraph (b). |

i

(6)(a} whenever an employee, retained in service, recalled to service! or employed by the Recipient pur^ant to paragraphs (5), (7)
(c), or (18) hereof is placed in a worse position with respect to compensation as a result of the Project, the employee shall be

.considered a "displaced employee", and shall be paid a monthly "displacement allowance" to be' determined in accordance with
this paragraph. Said displacement allowance shall be paid each displaced employee during the protective period so long as the

employee is unable, in the exercise of his/her seniority rights, to obtain a position producing compensation equal to or exceeding

the compensation theemployee received in the position from which|the employee was displaced, adjusted to reflect subsequent
general wage adjustments, including cost of living adjustments where provided for.

(6)(b) The displacement allowance shall be a monthly allowance determined by computing the total compensation received by the i

employee, including vacation allowarKes and monthly compensation guarantees, and his/her total time paid for during the last
twelve (12) months in which the employee performed compensated service more than (ifty per centum of each such months, based

upon the employee's normal work schedule, immediately preceding the date of his/her displacement as a result of the Project, and

by dividing ̂ paratcly the total compcowtion and the total time paid for by twelve, thereby producing the average monthly

compensation and the average monthly time paid for. Such allowance shall be adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage

adjustments, including cost of living adjustments where provided for. If the displaced employee's compensation In his/her current

position is less In any month during his/her protective period than the aforesaid average compensation (adjusted to reflect ,
subsequent general wage adjustments, including cost of living adjustments where provided for), the employee shall be paid the
riifferenre, lex.s rnmpensafino for any rime Inst nn ar/oi»nr of vrrfuniary absences to the extent that theemployee i.s not available

for service equivalent to his/her average monthly time, but the employee shall be compensated in addition thereto'at the rate ol

the current position lor any time worked in excess of the average monthly time paid >or. II a displaced employee lails to exercise

his/her seniority rights to secure another position to which the emp!<^ee is entitled under the then existing collective bargaining
agreement, and which carries a wage rate and compensation exceeding that of the position which the employee elects to.retain.
the employee shall thereafter be treated, for the purposes of this paragraph, as occupying the position the employee elects to

decline.

(6)(c) The displacement allowance shall coase prior to the expiration of the protective period in the event of the displaced

employee's resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause in accordance with any labor agreement applicable to his/her
employment. j

I

(7)(a) Whenever any employee is laid off or otherwise deprived of employment as a result'of the Project, in accordance with an/

collective bargaining agreement applicable to his/her employment, the employee shall be considered a "dismissed employee" and

.shall be paid a montfily dismissal allowance to be determined in accordance with this paragraph. Said dismissal allowance ̂all-

first be paid each dismissed employee on the thirtieth (30th) day (ollc^'ng the day on which the employee is "dismissed" and shall
continue during the protective period, as follow.

Employee's length of service

prior to advpnui effegt Perinri nf pror^rtion

1 day to 6 years equivalent period

6 years or more 6 years

The monthly dismissal allowance shall be equivalent to one-twelfth (i/12lh) of the total compensation received by the employee in
the last twelve (12) months of his/her employment in which the employee performed compensation service more than fifty per
centum of each such month based on the employee's normal work s^edule to the date on which the employee was first deprived



of employmeni as a result of the Project. Such allowance shall be adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage adjustments,
including cost of living adjustments where provided for.

<7)(b) An employee shall be regarded as deprived of employmeni and entitled to a dismissal allowance when the position the
employee holds is abolished as a result of the Project, or when the ppsition the employee holds is not abolished but the employee
loses that position as a result of the exercise of seniority rights by an employee whose position is abolished as a result of the Project
or as a result of the exercise oflseniority rights by other employees brought about as a result-of the Project, and the employee is
unable to obtain another position, either by the exercise of the employee's seniority rights, or through the Recipient, in accordance
writh subparagraph (e). In the absence of proper notice followed by an agreement or decision pursuant to paragraph (5) hereof, no
employee who has been deprived of employment as a result of the Project shall bo required to exercise his/her seniority rights to
secure another position In order to qualify for a dismissal allowance hercunder. '

(7)(c) Each employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall keep the fleclpient informed as to his/her current address and the
current name and address of any other person by whom the employee may be regularly employed, or If the employee Is self-
employed. j

(7)(d) The dismissal allowance shall be paid to the regularly assigned^ incumbent of the position abolished, if the position of an
employee is abolished when the employee is absent from service, the employee will be entitled to the dismissal allowance when
the employee Is available fof service. The employee temporarily filling said position at the time it was obistlshed wilt be given a

•dismissal allowance on the basis of that position, until the regular ernployee is available for service, and thereafter shall revert to
the employee's previous status and will be given the protections of the agreement in said position, if any are due him/her.

(7)(e} An employee receivinga dismissal allowance shall be subject to call to return to service by the employee's former employer;
notification shall be in accordance with the terms of the then-existing collective bargaining agreement if the employee is
represented by a union. Prior to such call to return to worV by hiVher employer, the employee may be required by the Recipient to
accept reasonably comparable employment for which the employee « physically and mentally qualified, or for which il^ employee-
can become qualified after a reasonable training or retraining.period, provided It does not requirea change in residence or Infringe
upon the employment rights of other employees under then-existing collective bargaining agreements.

»  1 / •

(7)(f) When an employee who is receiving a dismissal allowance again commences employment in accordance with subparagraph
(e) above, said allowance shall cease while the employee is so reemployed, and the period ot time during which the employee Is so
reemployed shall be deducted from the total period for which the employee is entitled to receive a dismissal allowance. During the
time of such reemployment. the employee shall be entitled to the protections of this arrangement to the extent they are applicable.

(7)lg) The dismissal allowance of any employee who is otherwise employed shall be reduced to the extent that the employee's
combined monthly earnings from such other employment or self-employment, any benefits received from any unemployment
insurance law. and his/her dismissal allowance exceed-ihe amount upon which the employee's dismissal allowance is based. Such
employee, or his/her union representative, and the Recipient shall agree upon a procedure by which the Recipient shall be kept
currently informed of the earnings of such employee in employmwi other than with the employee's former employe, including
self-employment, and the benefits received. •

(7)(h) The dismissal allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the protective period in the event of the failure of the employee
' without good cause lo return to service in accordance with the applicable labor agreement, or to accept employment as provided

under subparagraph (e) above, or in the event of the employee's resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause inaccordance with any labor agreement applicable to his/her employfjienl.
(7)(i} A dismissed employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall actively seek and not refuse other reasonably comparable
employmeni offered him/her for which the employee is physically and mentally qualified and does not requirea change in the
employee's place of residence. Failure of the dismissed employee to|comply with this obligation shall be grounds for
discontinuance of the employee's allowance; provided thai said dismissal allowance shall not be discontinwd until final
determination is made either by agreement between the Recipient and the employee or his/her representative, or by final
arbitration decision rendered in accordance with paragraph (IS) of this arrangement that such employee did not comply with this
obligation.

(e) In determining length of service of a displaced or dismissed employee for purposes of this arrangement, such employee shall be
given full service credits in accordance with the records and labor agreements applicable to him/her and the employee shall be
given additional service credits for each month In which the employee receives a dismissal or displacement allowance as if the

• employee were continuing to perform services in his/her former position.

'  (9) No employee shall be entitled to either a displacement or dismissal allowance under paragraphs (6) or (7j hereof because of the
abolisJimcnl of a position to which, at some future time, the employee could have bid, been transferred, or promoted.



(10) No employee receiving a dismissal or displacement allowartce shall be deprived, during the employee's protected period, of

any rights, privileges, or benefits attaching to his/her employment, including, without limitation, group life insurance,
hospitalization and medical care, free transportation for the employee and the employee's family, sick leave, continued status and

participation under any disability or retirement program, and such other employee benefits as Railroad Retirement, Social Security,

Workmen's Compensation, and unemployment compensation, as w^l as any other benefits to which the employee may be entitled
under the same conditions and so long as such benefits continue to accorded to other employees of the bargaining unit, in

active service or furloughed as the case may be. i

(11)(a) Any employee covered by this arrangement who is retained in the service of his/her employer, or who is later restored to

service after being entitled to receive a dismissal allowance, and who is required to change the point of his/her employment in
order to retain or secure active employment with the Recipient In accordance with this arrangement, and who Is required to move

his/her place of residence, shall be reimbursed for all expenses of moving his/her household and other personal effects, for the

traveling expenses for the employee and members of the.employee'simmediate family, including living expenses for the employee
and the employee's immediate family, and for his/her own actual wage loss during the lime necessary for such transfer and for a

reasonable time thereafter, not to exceed Tn/e (5) vrorking days. The exact extent of the responsibility of the Recipient under this
paragraph, and the ways and means of transportation, shall be agreed upon-in advance between the Recipient and the aRectcd

employee or the employee's representatives. j
V  I

(ll)(b) if any such employee is laid off within thr^ (3) years after changing his/her point of employment.in accordance with
paragraph (a) hereof, and elects to move his/her place of residence back to the original point of employment, the Redpient shall

assume the expenses, losses and costs of moving to the same extent provided in subparagraph (a) of this paragraph (il) and

paragraph (12}{a) hereof.

(1 iKc) No claim for reimbursement shall be paid under the provisions of this paragraph unless such claim is presented to the
id Hwritid^ wiUiin diri<^y (Qi)} i.li«yv ><fle' tl*e dt'l':".*'' w'"'.'* wetein'.'i.iire'J.

(11)(d} Except as'otherwise provided in subparagraph (b), changes in|place of residence, subsequent to the initial changes as a
result of the Project, which are not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of seniority rights, shall not be

considered within the purview of this paragraph.

(12)[a) The following conditions shall apply to the extent they are applicable in each instance to any employee who is retained in

the service of the employer (or who is later restored to.service after being entitled to receive a dismissal allowance), who is required

to change the point of his/her employment as a result of the Project, pd is thereby required to move his/her place of residence.
If the employee is under a contract to purchase his/her home, the Recipient shall protect the employee against loss under such

contract, and In addition, shall relieve the employee from any further obligation thereur>der.

If the employee holds an unexpired leaM of a dwetling occupied as trie employee's home, trie Recipient shall protect the employee

from all loss and cost in securing'the cancellation of said lease. |

(I2)[b) No claim for loss shall be paid under the provisions of this palgraph unless such claim is presented to the Recipient in
writing within one year after the effective date of the change in residence.

(12)(c) Should a controversy arise in respect to the value of the home the loss sustained in its sale, the loss under a contract for.

purchase, loss and cost in securing termination of a lease, or any other question in connection with these matters, it shall be

decided through a joint conference between the employee, or his/her union, and the Recipient, in the event they are unable to

agree, the dispute or controversy may be referred by the Recipient orjthe union to a board of competent real estate appraisers
selected in the following manner: one (i) to be selected by the repre»ntatives of the employee, and one (1) by the Recipient, and

these two. if unable to agree within thirty (30) days upon the valuation, shall endeavor by agreement with ten (10) days thereafter
to select a third appraiser or to agree to a method by which a third appraiser shall be selected: and failing such agreement, either

party may request (he State and local Board of Real Estate Commissioners to designate within ten (10) days a third appraiser,
whose designation will be binding upon the parties and whose jurisdiction shall be limited to determination of the issues raised in
this paragraph only. A decision of a majority of the appraisers shall be required and said decision shall be final, binding, and
conclusive. The compensation and expenses of the neutral appraiser including expenses of the appraisal board, shall be borne

equally by the parties to the proceedings. All other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them, including the compensation
of the appraiser selected by Such party.

(I2)(d) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (ll)(b) hereof, changes in place of residence, subsequent to the initial changes as

a result of the Project, which arc not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of seniority rights, shall not be



considered within the purview of this peragraph.

{12)'(e) "Change in residence" means transfer to a work location whi^ is either (A) outside a radius of"twenty (20) miles of the.
employee's former work location and farther from the employe's re^dence than was his/her former work location, or (B) is more
than thirty (30) normal highway route miles from the employee's resWence and also farther from his/her residerKe than was the
employee's former work location. |

•  ♦ I '

(13)(a) A dismissed employee entitled to protection under this arrangement may, at the employee's option within twenty-one |2i)

days of his/her dismissal, resign and (in lieu'oi all other benefits and protections provided in tfvs arrangement) accept a tump sum
payment cornputed in accordance with section (9) of the Washington Job Protection Agreement of May 1936:

-  I ongth of <;pfvice Spnaratinn Allov/ance

1 year and less than 2 years 3 months' pay

2"" "■3"6""

3  -5-9--

5'""" 10" 12"" i -
^ 10 ""-"is "12"" I

15 ""over 12"" • • , ^ '

In the case of an employee with less than one year's service, five days' pay, computed by multiplying by 5 the normal daily earnings
(including regularly scheduled overtime, but excluding other overtime payments) received by the employee in the position last"
occupied, for each month in which the employee performed service, will be paid as tfie lump sum.

Length of service shall be computed as provided in Section 7(b] of the Washington Job protection Agreement, as follows:

'■ i * '
■ For tlie purposes of this arrangement, the length of service of the employee shall be determined from lhe date the employee last

acquired an employment status with the employing carrier and the employee shall be given credit for one month's service for each
month in which the employee performed any service (in any capacity whatsoever) and twelve (12) such months shall be credited as
one year's service. The employment status of an employee shall not be interrupted by furlough in instances whore the employee
has a right to ind does return to service when called. In determining l^gih of service of an employee acting as an officer or other
official representative of an employee organization, the employee will be given credit for performing service while so engaged on
leave of absence from the service of a carrier.

(13)(b) One month's pay shall be computed by inulliplylugby 30 ihe iioinidl dally earnings (including regularly scheduled overtime,
but excluding other overtime payrnents) received by the employee in the position last occupied prior to time of the employee's
dismissal asa lesukuf Uiu Piujetl. I

.  ̂ i
(14) Whenever used herein, unless ti>eco(itexl requires ollicrwise. the term "protective period' means that period of time during
which a displaced or dismissed employee is to he provided protection hereunder and extends from the date on wrtiich an employee
is displaced or dismissed to the expiration of six (6) years therefrom, provided, however, that the protective period for any,
particular employ^ during which the employee is entitled to receive the benefits of these provisions shall not continue for a longer
period following the date the employee was displaced or dismissed than the employee's length of service, as shown by the records
and labor agreements applicable to his/her employment prior to the dale of the employee's displacement or dismissal.

(15)(8) In the event that employee(s) are represented by a Union, any dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or relating to the
interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this arrangement, not otherwise governed by paragraph 12(c). the
Labor-Management Relations Aa, as amended, the Railway Labor Act, as amended, or by impasse resolution provisions in a ^
collective bargaining or protective arrangement Invotwng the Recipiwt ai>d the Union, which cannot be settled by the parties
thereto within thirty (30) days after the dispute or-controversy arises, may be referred by any such party to any final and birtding
disputes settlement procedure acceptable to the parties. In the event they cannot agree upon such procedure; the dispute, claim,
or grievance may be submitted at the written request of the Recipient or the Union to final and binding arbitration. Should the
parties be unable to agree upon the selection of a neutral arbitrator within ten (10) days, any party may request the American
Arbitration Association to furnish, from among arbitrators who are then available to serve, five (5) arbitrators from which a neutral
arbitrator shall be selected. The parties shall, within five (S) days after the receipt of such list, determine by lot the order of
elimination and thereafter each shall, in that order, alternately eliminate one name until.only one name remains. The remairting
person on the list shall be the neutral arbitrator. Unless otherwise provided, in the case of arbitration proceedings, under paragraph
(5) of this arrangement, the arbitration shall commence within fifteen (15) days after selection or appointment of Ihe neutral
arbitrator, ahd lhe decision shall be rendered within forty-five (45) days after the hearing of the dispute has been concluded and the
record closed. The decision shall be final and binding. All the condUionsof the arrangement shall continue to be effective during
the arbitration proceedings.



(lS)(b) The compensation and expenses of (he neutral arbitrator, and any other jointly incurred expenses, shall be borne equally by

the Union(s) and Recipient, and all other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them.

(i5)(c} In the event that employee(s) are not represented by a Union, any dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or relating to the

interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this arrangement which cannot be settled by the Recipient and the

employeefs) within thirty (30) days after the dispute or controversy arises, may be referred by any such party to any final and

binding dispute settlement procedure acceptable to the parties, or ir) the event the parties cannot agree upon such a procedure,

the dispute or controversy may be referred to the Secretary of l.abor fora final and binding determination.

(15)(d) In the event of any dispute as to whether or not a particular employee was affected by the Project, it shall be the obligation

of the employee or the representative of the employee to identify the Project and specify the pertinent facts of the Project relied
upon. It shall then be the burden of the Recipient to prove that (actors other than the Project affected the employee. The claiming

employee shall prevail if it is established that the Project had an effect upon the employee even if other factors may also have
affected the employee. (See Hodgson's Affidavit in Civil Action No. 825-71).

!  * '
(16) The Recipient will be financially responsible for the application of these conditions and will make the necessary arrangements

so that any employee covered by this arrangement may file a written claim of its violation, through the Union, or directly if the

employee it outside the bargaining unit, with the Recipient within sixty (60) days of the date the employee is terminated or laid off ^
as a result of the Project,.or within eighteen (18) months of the date the employee's position with respect to his/her employment is

otherwise worsened as a result of the Project. In the latter case, if the events giving rise to the claim have occurred over an

extended period, the 16-month limitation shall be measured from the last such event. No beheHts shall be payable for any period
prior to six (6) months from the date of the filing of any claim. Unless such claims are Hied with the Recipient within said time

limitations, the Recipient shall thereafter be relieved of all liabilities and obligations related to the claim.

The Recipient will fully honor the claim, making appropriate payments, or will give notice to the claimant or his/her representative

of the basis for denying or modifying such claim, giving reasons therefore. If the Recipient fails to honor such claim, the Union or

non-bargaining unit employee may invoke the following procedures for further joint investigation of the claim by giving notice in

writing. Within ten (10) days from the receipt of such notice, the parties shall exchange such factual material as may be requested of
them relevant to the disposition of the claim and shall jointly take such steps as may be necessary or desirable to obtain from any

third party such additional factual materials as may be relevant. In tlK event the Recipient rejects the daim. the daim may be

processed to arbitration as hefeinabove provided by paragraph (IS).

(17) Nothing in this arrangement shall be construed as depriving any employee of any rights or benefits which such employee may

have under existing employment or collective bargaining agreements or otherwise; provided that there shall be no duplication of

benefits to any employee, and. provided further, that any benefit under this arrangement shall be construed to include the

cor>ditions. responsibilities, and obligations accompanying such benefit. This arrangement shall not be deemed a waiver of any

rights of any Union or of any represented employee derived from anyjother agreement or provision of federal, state or local law.

118) During the employee's protective period, a dismissed employee shall, if the employee so requests, in writing, be granted

priority of employment or rWmployment to fill any vacant position within the jurisdiction and conbol of the Recipient reasonably
comparable to that which the employee held when dismissed, including those in the employment of any entity bound by this

arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21) herein, (or which the employee is. or by training or retraining can bMome. qualified; not,

however. In contravention of collective bargaining agreements related thereto, in the event such employee requests such training

or re-training to fill such vacant position, the Recipient shall provide for such training or re-training at no cost to the employee. The

employee shall be paid the salary or hourly rate provided for in the applicable collective bargaining agreement or otherwise

established in personnel policies or practices (or such position, plus any displacernent allowance to which the employee may be

otherwise entitled. If such dismissed employee who has made such f^uest (ails, without good cause, within ten (lo) days to accept
an offer of a position comparable to that which the employee held when dismissed for which the employee is qualified, or for which

the employee has satislactorily completed such training, the em(>loyee shall, effective at the expiration of such ten-day period,

forfeit.ail rights and benefits under this arrangement.

As between employees who request employment pursuant to this paragraph, the following order where applicable shall prevail in

hiring such employees:

(a) Employees in the craft or class of the vacancy shall be given priority over employees without seniority in such craft or class;

(b) As between employees having seniority in the craft or class of the vacancy, the senior employees, based upon their service in

that craft or class, as shown on the appropriate seniority roster, shall prevail over junior employees;
•  I

(c) As between employees not having seniority in the craft or class of the vacancy, the »nior employees, based upon their service in

the crafts or classes in which they do have seniority as shown on the appropriate seniority rosters, shall prevail over junior

employees.

.)



(19) The Recipient will post, in a prominent and accessible place, a notice stating that the Recipient has received federal assistance
under the Federal Transit statute and has agreed to comply with the (irovisjons pi 49 U.S.C., Scaion 5333(b). This notice shall also
specify the terms and ccTtditlons set forth herein for the protection of employees. The Recipient shall maintain and keep on File all
relevani books and recordsin sufficient detail as to provide the basic information necessary to the proper application,
administration, and enforcement of this arrangement and to the pro(»r determination of any claims arising thereunder.

(20) in the event the Project is approved for assistance under the statiite. the foregoing terms and conditions shall be made part of
the contract of assistance between the federal government and the applicant for federal funds arxJ betweert the applicant and any
recipient of federal funds; provided, however, that this arrangement shall not merge into the contraa of assistance, but shall be
independently binding and enforceable by and upon the parties thereio..and by any covered employee or his/her representative, in
accordance with its terms, nor shall any other employee protective agreement merge into this arrangement, but each shall be
independently binding and enforceable by and upon the parties iherpo, in accordance with its terms.
(21) This arrangement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto, and no provisions, terms, or
obligations herein contained shall be affected, modified, altered, or changed in any respect whatsoever by reason of the
arrangements made by or for the Recipient to manage and operate llw system.

Any person, enterprise, body, or agency, whether publkly • or privately-owned, which shall undertake the management, provision
and/or operation of the Project services or the Recipient's transit system, or any part or portion thereof, under contractual
arrangements of any form with the Recipient, its successors or assigris, shall agree to be bound by the terms of.this arrangement
and accept the responsibility with the Recipient for'full performance of these conditions. As a condition precedent to any such
contractual arrangements, the Recipient shall require such person, enterprise, body or agency lo so agree.

(22) in the event of the acquisition, assisted with Federal funds, of any transportation system or services, or any part or portion
thereof, the employees ol the acquired entity shall be assured employment, in comparable positions, within the jurisdiction and
control of the acquiring entity, including positions in the employment of any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to
paragraph (21). All persons employed under the provisions of this paragraph shall be appointed to,such comparable positions
without exarnination. other than that required by applicable federal,|state or federal law or collective bargaining agreement, and
Shalt be credited with theirycars of service for purposes of seniority, vacations, and pensions in accordance with the records of
their former employer and/or any applicable collective bargaining agreements.

(23) The employees covered by this arrangement shall continue to receive any applicable coverage under Social Security, Railroad
Retirement, Workmen's Compensation, unemployment compensatitin, and the like. In no event shall these benefits be worsened
as a result of the Project.

(24) in the event any provision of this arrangement is held to be invalid, or otherwise unenforceable under the federal, state, or
local law, in the context of a particular Project, the remaining provisions of this arrangement shall not be affected and the invalid or
unenforceable provision shall be renegotiated by the Redpient and theiniercsied Union rcpresenutives. if any, of the employees
involved for purpose of adequate replacement under Section 5333(b). If such negotiation shall rroi result in mutually satisfactory
agreement any party may invoke the jurisdiction of the Secretary of Labor to determine substitute fair and equitable employee
protective arrangements for application only to the particular Project, which shall be incorporated in this arrangement only as
applied to ifiat Project, and any other appropriate action, remedy, or relief.

I  '
(25) If any employer ol the employees covered by this arrangement shall have rearranged or adjust^ its lorces in anticipation of
the Project, with the effect ol depriving an employee of benefits to which the employee should be entitled under this arrangement,
the provisions of this arrangemem shall apply to such employee as of the dale when the employee was so affected.
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Revised 07/18/2022

FTA and 2 CFR! 200 Agreement

Name ofAwarding.Agency: Federal Transit Aaministration (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name of Subrecipient/Contracting Agency: Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. j
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.. shall comply wilh all .

applicable federal laws, regulations, and requirerncnts as outlined in the most recent Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Cenifications and Assurances.
This award includes information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award proicct description: (As required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA)

Amount: $717,000

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 20.513
FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5310 (COMBTNED) RCC PROGRAM APPLICATIONS
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): ̂ ^H-202t-016-01

Federal Award Date: 9/1/21

♦  ' t

Contact information for sub-awarding official:

Name: Michelle L. Winters Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit
Email: MicheiIe.L.Winters@dot.nh.gov Phone: S03-27I-2449
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT*$ cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipicnt/Contractor.Information:

Subrecipient/Contractor Name: Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. '

Subrecipient/Contractor SAM.GOV l.D.: F44JKSNJDJM6

Name of authorizing subrecipienl/contracting official: Jeanne Agri
Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Executive Director

Federal Clauses: N/A |
Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient/Contractor Federal indirect cost rate: N/A
(An approved federally recognized indirect cost vale negotiated between (he suhrecipieni/contraclov and the Federal
Government or, ifno such rale exists, either a rote negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrccipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minim ts indirect co.U rate as defined in §200.414 Indirect. (F&A) cosu.
paragraph (f)).



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement
'mJ-TrixMtpatnmihtm

Revised 07/18/2022

Suha>var<l Period of performance:

Start Dale: 7/1/23 End Date: 6/30/25

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated by this action (coniract/amendmenO:

For FFY: 2024 Section; 5310 RCC Amount: $717,000

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipieni (originalcontraa^ amendments):

For FFY: 2024 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $717,000

PasS'through renuifenients:

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Comwr///>/7t' Action Proernm Belknaihl^icn'mwdk Counties. Inc.

agrees to meet all requirement'imposed by the
so that the Federal award is used in accordance

and conditions of the Federal award.

5ass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient
with Federal statues, regulations and the terms

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Communiiy Acthn Froer^im BelknaprMernmack Counties. Inc.
agrees to any additional requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the
subrecipient in order for the.pass-lhrough entity (NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity
(NHDOT) to meet its own responsibility to the |Fcderal awarding agency (FTA) including
identification of any required financial and performance reports.

I  . ' -
The Subrecipient/Contractor. Community Ac/ioit Proerani Belktuw-Merrimack Cbimfies, Inc.

agrees to permit the pass-through entity (NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the
subrecipients records and financial statements as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet
the requirements of this part; and appropriate terms and conditions conceming closeout of the
subaward.

Date; 4/27/2023

Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting o

Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Executive Director

ficial: Jeanne Agri

Signature of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official.s^ nx ..
Jeanne Agri, ChicTExlfeJbi/tive Officer

s



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 07/18/2022

FTA and 2 CFRilOO Agreement

^ame ofAwafding Agcncyt Federal Transit Ad.ninistration (FTA)
t

Name'of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire De,mrtment of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name ofSubrecipient/Contracting Agency: Community Action Program Belknap-Mernmack
■ Counties, Inc. j
Community Action Prooram Belknan-Merrimack Counties. Inc.. shall comply with all
applicable federal laws, regulations, and requirements 'as outlined in the most recent Federal ■
Transit Administration (FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances.
This award includes information required by 2 C"R Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (As required m be expansive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA) ,

Amount: 1,894,000

Catalog of Federal Domestic. Assistance (CFDA)'number; 20.509
FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 531 1 (RURAL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROJECT
SOLICITATION

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NH-2021-017
Federal Award Date: 9/8/21

Contact information for sub-awarding official:
Name: Michelle L. Winters Title; Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit
Email: Michelle.L.Winters@dot,nh.gov Phone: >03-271-2449
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: -N/A

Subrccioicnt/Contractor Information:

Subrccipient/Contractor Name: Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.

Subrccipient/Contractor SAM.GOV I,D.: F44JKSNJDJM6
Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Jeanne Agn
Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Executive Director
Federal Clauses: N/A ,

Master Agrecment/Certincations and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient/Conlractor Federal indirect cost rate: N/A
(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the suhrecipient/contrador and the Federal
Government or. ifno such rote exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrecipicnt
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414 Indirect. (F&A) costs,
paragraph (/)).
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Revised 07/18/2022FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Subaward Period of.performance: I
Start Dater7/l/23 End Dale: 6/30/25

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated bv this action (contrnct/nmcndmehty.

For FFY:2024'Section: 5311 Amount: $1,89<000

Total amount of FTA sub-award cdminittcdito the suhrcdpicnfforirtnaiconirociA omeu'rimentsh

For FFY: 2.024 Section: 53II Amount: $1,8941,000

PasS'through requirements:

I

The Subrecipient/Contractor,. Co/»/r!///r/'/t' Action Pjocram Belkhap-Mcrrinuick Counties: Jhc.

agrees to meet a!) requirement imposed by the
so that the Federal award is used in accordance

and conditions of the Federal award.

Dass-through entity (NHDOT).oh the subrecipient
with Federal statues, regulations and the terms

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Community Acfion ProL'rnm BclkiwD-Merrimack Cdiinticx: Jnc.
agrees to any additional requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the
subrecipient in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity
(NHDOT) to meet its own responsibility to thc|FcderaI awarding agency (FTA) including
identification of any required financial and performance reports.

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Community Action Proarom Belknan-Mernmack Counties. Inc.
agrees to permit the pass-through entity (NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the
subrecipients'records and financial statements as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet
the requirements.of this part; and appropriate terms and conditions concerning closeout of the
subaward. 1

i  . • *
Date: 4/27/2023 * !

Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting o.fTicial: Jeanne Agri

Title of authorizing subrccipicnt/contracling official: Executive Director

Signature of authorizing subrecipient/contracting officiaI\^
Exec c Officer



J  Depwimeni or<h<Tr«M0O'
InUrnsI S*rrtr«

P.O. Box 2506

Cincinnati OH <»5201

In reply refer to: 02<i8^5978D
Oct. 02, 2008 LTR ^168C EO
02-0270S76 000000 00 000

00019992

BOOC: TE

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP &
MERRIMACK COUNTIES INC j

PO BOX 1016 i
CONCORD NH 05502-1016167

a334C

Employer Identification Number:
Person to Contact:

Toll Free Telephone Number:

Dear TAXPAYER;

02-0270576

MR. PILLIS

1-877-829-5500

^  This is in response to your request of Sep. 23, 2008, regarding your
tax-exempt status. {

Our records indicate that a determination letter was issued in
JULY 1968, that recognized you as [exempt from Federal, income tax,
and discloses that you are currently exempt under section 501(c)(3)
o.f the Internal Revenue Code.

Our records also indicate you are not a private- foundation within the
meaning of section 509(a) of the Code because you are described insection(s) 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(Ij(A)Cvi),
Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of
the Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfcrs, or gifts to you or
for your use arc deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes
if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and
2522 of the Code.

If you have any Questions, please
shown in the heading of this letter.

call us at the telephone number

Sincerely yours.

Michele M. Sullivan, Oper. Mgr.
Account's Management Operations I

Pago 22
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To the Board of Directors
Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrim.ack
Concord. New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT A

Counties, inc.

JDITORS' REPORT

Leone, .
McDcmnell
&RoI)erts

CKKTII'lVX) I'l Alllli lUNTANTi

«'ni>'«ujKO • NOk'ni iThway

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
Belkriap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
statements of financial position as of February
statements of activities, functional expenses, and
notes-to the consolidated financial statements.

Inancial'statements, of Community" Action Program of
organization), which comprise the consolidated
28, .2022; and' 2021, and Ihe^ related- consolidated
::ash flows for the years .then ended, and the related

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present .fairly, in all material respects, the fihandal
position of-Community Action Program of Belknap-I^errimack Counties. Inc. as of February 28. 2022
and 2021. and the changes in its net assets and Us. cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generatly accepted in the United Stales of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of Arrierica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofj the United Stales. Our responsibilities under those
standards, are further described in the Auditore' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to-be independent of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrim.ack Counties, Inc. and to meet our other ethical fespdnsibi.lities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit, |We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in" accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United Stales of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance, of internal control, relevant to the. preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstalemenl, whether
due to fraud or error.

in preparing" the financial statements,, managerhent is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events-, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Program
of Beiknap-Merriimack. Counties. Inc."s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the
date that, the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditors'-Responsibilities for the Audit of (he Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasooabie assurancei about whether the conso.lida.t'ed financial statemerits'
•as a vyhole-are free from nialerial misslatemenl. whether dueilp fraud or erro'f..ahd tp.issue an auditors'
report that: includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance .is a-hlghjevel of assurance but'is n6t a.l?so|ule
assurance and therefore is not a. guarantee-that ah audit conducted'.in arcordance with, generally,
■accepted auditing standards ■ and Government' ^Auditing Standards will aiways'-delect a rnater^l
misstalement when it exists. The risK of ;npt delecting, a: material misstatehfienf resulting'frorh-fraud is
higher than-for one resulting .from error, as fraud may-involve" collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.: Mjsstalements are considered material if there is
a substantial.likelihood that, indi^/idually^or in the-aggregate, they would Influence the-judgment made
by.a reasonable user based on the: consolidated nnandal statements.

In performing an audit in acdordarice with generally accepted auditing standards and Governmenl
Auditing Standards, we^ I /

•  .EVe'rcise .professional judgment.ahd mairitai.n-professional, skepticism throughout the-audit..

•  Identify and assess the. risks- of material'misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.-
•whether due to-fr^ud or error, and. design, ahd perform audit-procedures ■responsive .to those-
risks,.Such procedures Include examining.-on a lest basis., evidence regarding the ambuntS;and.
disclosures In the consolidated financial statements.,

•  Obtain an understanding of Iniernaj- coniroi-.Te|6vant to the. audit In* order to. desiigh 'audit
procedures that are appropriate in-the.'circumstances, but. not" for the purpbse. of expressihg.ah
opinion on the effectiveness of Gdmmuni
Inc.'S liilefYial control..Acc'PTdiiigly. no such

y Action Program-of Belkhap-t^errirhack Counties;
opinion is expressed. '

'■ • Evaluate the approprlateness.of accouhting policies used and lhe reasonableness of significant
acnQuntIng estimates made.by" management, .as well as evaluate the overall .presentatio.n pf'the
consolidated financial statemerits.

•  Conclude whether, in our.jud'g'ment; Ihere are.conditiohs or events, considered' in the-aggregate,
that raise substantial doiibt abbut Cornmu.iiity Action-Program of Belkhap-Met;rirhack Counties,I  Iric.'s ability to continue as a. going-concerri'for a reasonable period of time."

We- are required to conimuriicale with (hose charged with governance rega.rding,. among other-.matte.rs-.
the planned scope arid timing of the audit, signincant audit findings, and certain internal cpntrol-related'
matters thal 'we identified during'the .audit.



Supplementary information

Our 3udil was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal-awards, as-required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal .Regulations Part 200," Uniform \Adfnini$trative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.- is pre^nled for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part, of the corisolldated financial statemeHts. Such infprmalion Is the responsibility of
managemenl and was derived from-and relates directly to the underlying accounting and,other records
used to prepare the "consolidated financial statements. The Information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures, applied in ,the audit of the consolidated financial statements'and-certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and oiher records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to .the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional" procedures in' accordance- with auditing, standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated' financial
statements as a whole.-

Other Reporting {Required by Coyernment Auditing Standards '

In.accordarice with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued pUr.report dated September 8.
2022;. on pur consideration of Gommunity Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s
ihlernal control, over financiar reporting and on our tests of its compliance with"certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts.. =ahd grant agreements and other matters; The purpbsesof that report Is solely to
describe the scope, of" our testing of intemal.'contr;ol over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness Of Gommuniity Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimadk Gounlies, Inc.'s internal .control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
.report is an integral -part of .;an audit performed In accordance, with G.dvemmenf Auditing Standards in
considering. Cornmuriity Action Program of Belknap.fMerrima.ck Counties. Inc.'s ihternal control over
nnancial reporting and compliance. <

Concord, New Hampshire
September 8, 2022



rOMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BE KNAP . MERRIWACK COUNTIES- INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

^CURRENT ASSETS

■Cash
Accounts receivable
•invento^'

' Prepaid expenses
Investments

Total Current assets

PROPERTY
t_ar>d, buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and vehicles ■
Conslruclion in process

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property..het

OTTtER ASSETS
Cash escrow and re's'erve fur>ds
Tenant security deposits
Due from related parly

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILlTieS
Current portion of notes payable
Une-of credjl"
Accounts T^yable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Total current liabilities'

LONG TERM LlABILtTIES
Paycheck Proleclion Program loan
Notes payable, less current person shown above
Tenant security deposits

Total liabitiDes

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrtcUons
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2022

$ L384;485
5.244',621

271,926
33,928

138,793

7.073.753

7.368,799
6,335,485

41,401

13,745,685

7.528.-363

6;217.322

89.466
•9.120

65.488

164.076

2021

899.766
3,762.609.

55,895.
73.709

i-27.996

4.920:175

7.146.516
6.117.020

i,6;n26

13.281,662

7.639,290

5.64l3'72

65,437
6.681

72,318

$ 13:455.151 5 10.634.865

•314.265
154.350

3.635.655
L086.2Q7
1.537.602

6;728,279

280.439
620,050

9,120

7;637.888

5; 179.734
637,529

5,8i 7,283

213,444-
380.028.

1.525832
788.951

1.036.941

3.945l'96

1.935,300
939.697

6.681

6:627.074

2.758,959
1.046.832

3,807.791

S 13.455.151 $ 10.634.865

See Notes to'Consolidated Financial Statcrnehls
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP -MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED.StiTEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR-ENDED FEBRUARY 28.. 2022

REVENUES'AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant'awards

Rental income

Other funds

■ Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness
In-ktnd

United Way
Intenesl incom'e

Realized, gain on sale of equipment

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES

Program •
Management

total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF VeAR

Without Donpr
Restrictions

41.360.777

40.084.851
1.917.438

42,002.289

2;420.775

2.758,959

With Donor

Restrictions'

$ 36.482.087 $

135.298

2.526.432

1.615.427

'592.136
2.123

74

7.200

2.650,984

2,650.984

Total

$ .36.462.087
r35.298

5.177,416
1.615;427

592:136
2:123

74

7.200

44.011.761

3.062.287 (3.062.287.) ^

44.423.064-. (411.30.3) . . . 44.0.11.761

(411.303)

1,048.832

40;084.651
1:917.438

4l00'2.289

2.009.472

.3.807.791

$  5.179.734 $ 637.529 $ 5.817:263

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



, r.OMMUKJITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP . MERRtMACK COUNTIES.-INC.

CONSOUDATEp STATEMENT OF ACTiyiTjES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2021

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards

Rental Incgme'

Other funds

tn-kind-

Uniled'Way

Interest Income

Realized gain on sale of equipment

'  Tolalrevenuds and'oiher support
i

NET ASSETS RELEASED'FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total -

EXPENSES

Program
Management

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE GAIN ON
INVESTMENT.IN LIMfTED PARTNERSHIP

GAIN ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CHANGE.IN NET ASSETS:

NET ASSETS; BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED^
partnership

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

1

Total

5  20.625.325
123.657

2.375.403
490.035

5.297
383

3.500

$

3,733.525

$  20,625.325

123.657

6,108.928
■496.035
.  5.297

383
3.500

y
23.623.600 3;733;525 27;357;i25

3:047.507 (3.047;507)

26.671.107 686.016 27.3'57.i25

26.i94'.346
1.274.50,1

•

1

26.194,346
1,274,501

27:488.847 : 27.468.847

.  , (797.740) 686.018 (111.722)

64.397' . 64.397

(7,33.343) 686.61a (47.325)

2,992,894. ;362.B14 ' 3.355.708

499,408 499.408

2,758.959 $ 1.048.832 S 3;807,791

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterhents
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COMMUNITY. ACTION PROGRAM BE.KNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLlbATEb STATEMENjT OF FUNCtlONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

r  i

Saldne's and wages
Payroll laxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program services-
Other costs;

Accounting fees
Legal fees
Supplies
Postage arKl shipping
Equipment rental and mai'nlehahce
Printing'and publications
Conferences;.conventions and meetings
Interest- .

Insurance

Membership fees'

Utility and rriainlenance
Computer services
Other

Oepreciaiion
In-kind

Total functional expenses

Prodrani Mahaoemeht .  * Total

$  7:961.177 S  1.180,579".4 9.141.756
2^296.590 228.375 2.525.085
194;343 9.648 203.991

1.267.982 1l'4.4.T8 1.382,400
25.639,659 - 25,639.659

. 74.655 74,855
15.361 152 15.513

159.844 44.534 •204.378
49.860" 8,731 58.591
1.141 - 1.141

,28,133 ,  27,696 55.829
13.964 - 13,964
29,187 26.'841 56.028
124,730 43.856-\ 168,686
16.276 - 16:276
88.702 ia4.-142 192.844

111.990 - ill".990
926,679 . 53.611 980.290
566.151 -• 566.151
592.982 ■ 592.982

$■ -'4di084;851 $  1,917.438 $  42,002.289

See Notes to Consolidated Finahcia) Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION.PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIESJMg.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENt OF FUnCTIONAL.EXRENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENOEO FEBRUARY 28. 2021

Salaries and Wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel ■

Occupancy
Program services-
Other costs:

Accouriling fees
Legal fees
Supplies
Postage and shipping '
EQuip'ment rente! and rhainlenance
Printing and publications.
Conferences; conyenllons and meetings
Interest

Insurance . ■
Membership fees.
Uliilly and rnaintenahce
Computer services '
OUier

Depreciation
In-kind

Total functional expense.s

Program' ' Management Total

8.423.286 $ 587.382 $. 9,010.668

2,308.290. 229.7/7 2-.538.0.67

•145.104 •809 145.913"

1,293!.i21 -136.322 1.429.443

11.796.741 - 11,796.741

*  ̂ 80.013 60.013

19;604 •r 19;604.

•  165.804 30.710 196^514
55'.087 8.986 65.073

6,736 ■ •• 6,736

34,562 3.551 •38.113

632 - 632

39.595 22,938 62.533

123.7.04. .27;528' 151.232

10,040 7,019 17.059

1Qp;837 62,549 253.386

47,178 •  '8,:660 • ■  55.838

584.982' . 68;257- .653,239

458;609 458.009

490,034 .. . - 490.034

S 26.194.346 $ S- •27.468;847

See t^ptes to Consoiidated Financial Slatemcnte
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COWIMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BEkKNAP > MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

CASH FLOVyS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In net assets
Adjgstments to reconcile change in net assels to

net cash tfom operating activities:
O.eprecialioh
Paycheck Protection .pr6gram\ loan forgiveness
Interest on deferred financing costs
Realized gain on sale of equipment
.Gain.on investment In limited partnership
Decrease (increase) in cument assets:

Accounts receivable

Inveniqry
Prepaid expenses
Due from related party

.decrease (increase) in curreni liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Refundable advances -

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) 0PERATIN<5 ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property
Additions to property
Investments

NET CASH uiED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FlNANCiNG ACTIVITIES
Net Paycheck Protection loan

' Net repayrnenls on line of credir
fRepayment of long term debt

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE. BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH TRANSFERRED FROM
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE. END OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH:

Cash

Cash escrow and reserve funds

See Notes to Consolidated Financiar Statements

p

s 2.009.472 S •  (47.325)

566.151

t

458.009
(1.615.427) ■

' 463 484

(7.200) (3.500)
- (64.397)

(1.481.812) (1,203.458)
(216.031) (32.979)

39;701 (18,723)
(65,488) .

iib9.823 356.371

297.256 23.890
■500,661 (47.575)

2,137,869 (579;203)

7,200 "3,500
(1.141.101) (618,410)

(10.797) :  (17.918)

(1.144.698) (632.826)

(39,434) 1.935.300
(225.678) (169.972)
(219,309) (199.152)

(484,421) 1,566,176

'508,750 354;145

965.203 549.026

. 62.032

$. 1.473,953 s 965,203

$ t.384.485 s 899,766
89.468 65.437

$ 1.473,953 s 965.203



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM DELKNAP ♦ MERRtMACK COUNTIES. INC;

^CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE VEARS eNDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF'CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cosh duHng Ihe ye.ir lor Inlcrcsl

202?

56,028

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES )

Tropsfer ol assets from new^ consoUaated LP:
Accounis recelvablo . %
Prepaid expensed
Property', nel'
Security deposils

Total (ransfor of assets from newty consolidated LP

Transfer of nablGtlcs from novdy corisoiidaied LP:
Accounis payable
Accrued expenses

Seo^'deposlis
Noiapayable-

Total trortsfer of liabiliUcs from rtev/iy consoJidai^ LP

Total transfer of partners' capital from newfy consolidated LP
Partnership caphai previously recorded os Inveslmeni in related parties

Total transfer of partners' capital from nowty consolidated LP

See Notes to Consoiidatad Financial Statements

1p

2021

62.533

S  2.496

iO.827
980.069

8.132

i s 1.001.S44

% s 8.625

7.062

6:132
.336.311

s 360.330

s % 499.408

203.838

s s 703,246



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

1. • ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFlCANT.ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Community Action Program Belknap - Merrimack CounlleSi Inc. (the Organization) is a
NewHampshire-nonprofit Organization that serves nutritional, health, living/and support
needs of the low" income and elderly clients in the two county sen;'ice areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the fina.ncjal support Of various federal,
state., county and local organizations.

Principles of Consolidation

Th©^ consolidated 'financial statements include the- accounts of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack. CountiesJ Inc.. and the foliowing entities as Community
Action Program B.elknap-Merrirnack Counties, InC: has both an economic interest and
control of the entities through a niajority voting interest in. their governing board.. All
significant intercompahy items and transactions have been eliminated, from basic
consolidated financial'statemenls.

"  Sandy: Ledge Liriiited Partnership
•  CAP BMC Development Corporation

Basis of Accounting

The. accoimpanyirig: consolidated, financial statements have' been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting In accordance with the accounting principles, generally
accepted in. the United States of America.

Basis of Preseritatlon

the^.consolidated financial, statements of the. Organization have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally^acce|pted accounting principles, which require the
Organization to report information rjegarding its financial position arid activities
according to the folio>ving net asset classifications;

Net assets without. donor restrictions include net assets that are not

subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be. expended for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net. .assets may be used at the discretion .of the Organization's
management and' board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets, subject Mo
stipulations imposed-by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in .nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual
In nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.

11



NOTES TO .CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Donor restricted contributions are reported .as increases in ne\ assets .with donor-
restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets-ar.e reGlassirted from riiet assets with
dorior restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements
of activities.

The Organization had net assets with donor restrictions of $637,529 and $1,048,832 at
February 28. 2022 and 2021. respectively. See Note 14.

*• . I

Income Taxes | /
Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimacl^. Counties. Inc: is organized as a
nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue
Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue Service has determined them to be other
than a private foundation.

The Organization files infomiatidn returns in the United States and the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization is- subject to examinations by tax authorities for three

. years. j

CAP BMC Development Corporation (the Corporation) to taxed .as a ".G" Corporolion.
under the Internal Revenue C^de. The Corporation accoNhtR for riRferred income taxes
under the asset and liability method in accordance with' Accounting Standards
Codification No. 740 (AS.C 7AO).."Accounting for Income Taxes"..The objective of this
method is to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences
between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of-the Cortipany's assets and
liabilities at the enacted tax rate expected, to be. in effect when such amounts are-
realized or settled. ASC 740 also requires-deferred tax assets and liabilities tp be showrn
separately. Ttiere are no .deferred tax assets or liabiilties. The Corporation has no
federal net operating loss carryforward.s available at February 28. 2022 and *2021 r

Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership is taxed asVa partnership. Federal Income taxes-are
not payable, or provided by the partnership. Earnings and losses are included in the
partners' federal income tax returns jbase'd on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file., incorrie tax rPlums with the Stale of New Hampshire
arid pay ah income tax at the state's statutory-rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accountiogjor Income Taxes,
established the minimum, threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in consolidated firiancial statement's.. The Organization
has; analyzed it^. tax position'taken on' its income tax returns for the. past three years,
and; has concludOd that no additional provision for'income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's consolidated financial statements.

12



■PRQGRAiVI BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND'2021

Property
Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a usefuMife in excess of one year-
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized .unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basls.over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements
Equipmerit, furniture and vehicles

40 years
3-10 years

Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with United Slates
generally-accepted accounting, principles requires rnanagement to make eslirnates and
assurriptions that affect eertath reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabiiitiies at the date-of the consolidated financiai statements
and the reported amounts of risvenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the consolidated'Statements of cash flows, the Organization considers
ail liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

j

The Organization mairitains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times may
exceed federally insured "lirnits; The Oryahixelion has uui e.xpHViHrioet.l-any losses in
such accounts and believes it-is hot ex
accounts.

:>osed to any significant risk with respect to these

Contributed Services
Donated services are recognized as Gdntributions In accordance with FASB ASC No.
958, Accounf/ng for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services (a)
create or enhance nori-fi.nancial assets or (b) require specialized, skills,, and would
othenA/ise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided Vanous services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in the consolidated financial stMements since the recdgnition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were hot met. ■

In-Kind Donations / Noncash transactions
Donated facilities,services.and supplies are reflected as revenue and expense in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met.
This represents the esUFhated' fair value for the service, supplies and. space that the
Organization might iricuf under normal operating activities.: The Organization received
$592,136 and $490,035 in donated fa'cilities, services and supplies for the years ended
February 28, 2022 and February 28. 2021, respectively, as follows:

13



-MERRIMACK COUNTiES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

I

The Organization receives contribuledt professional services that are required to be
recorded in accordance vvith FASB ASC No. 958. "The estlrtiated fair Value of these
services was determined to be $18,,731| and $18.937 -for the/years ended February 28.2022 and February 28. 2021. respecHvejiy.
The-Organizallon also rejceives contributed food commodities and other goods .that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No.-958. The estimated fair
value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $573,405 and
$471,098 for the years ended Febhjary'28. 2022 and 2021, respectively.

i  ' _ .

Advertising |
The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended Febhjary 28| 2022 and FebruaiV 28, 2021 totaled $134,193
and $14,287,.respectively.

)plies and work in process and is. valued al the
Inventory'

Inveritory consists of weathefization su..
lower of cost or net reallzabie value, using the first-in. nrstout method.

Revenue Recognition |
Amount's received, frbrri conditional grants and contracts for .'specific purposes are
generally recognized as Income to the extent that related expenses and. conditions are
incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the conditions being met are
reported .as- refundable advances. Contributions of c?sh and other assets are reported,
as with doriof restrictibns It they .are received with dbhof imposed stipulations that limit
the-use of the-donated assets. Ho\veve|r, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in
which the contribution is rccciycd, the Organization reports the support as without donor
restrictions.. ,

Proorarh Service Revenue

Program service revenue is recognized as revenue when the services are performed.

Rental Revenue

Thb Organizatibn derives revenues from the rental of-apartrrient units. Revenues are
recognized -as iricome, monthly, when rents become due,, and. control of the
apartment units Is transferred-to thejiessees. The individual leases are for a term of
one year a.nd-are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is transferred
to the'lessee in an amount that refle^cts the consideration the Partnership expects to
be entitled to in exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain the lease
will be expensed aS incurred.

14



CQIVIMUNITY ACTION.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

Functional Allocation of Expenses ^
The-costs of providing .the various prpgrams and other activities have been presented in
the CGnsolidaled Staternents of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated arriong the program services and supporting activities benefited.
Expenses are charged to each, prog.ram teased on the direct . expenses incurred or
estimated usage based on.time spent.on each:prograrn by staff. '

Expense

Wages and benefits
Depreciation
All otherexpenses

Method of allocation

Time and effort

Actual assets used by program
Direct assignment

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAiLABILITY
The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of February. 28. 2022
and 202-1:

l!
I •
I

.Financial assets at year end: ]
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignaled'
Accounts receivable

Investments

Cash fesen/es
Cash, escrow

$

2022

1.384-485

5,244,621

-  138.793

81.143

I-8.325

■ 6.857.367

637;529

61.143

718.672

2021

$  899;766
3.762.809

127.996

62;1d3
3.334

4.856.008Total financiarassets
I

Less amounts not available to be used within one year
Net assets with donor restrictions . 637',529 1.048,832

Reserve funds 81.143 62.103

Amounts hot available within one year . 718.672 1.110.935

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve, months . •$' 6.138:695 $ 3.734.073

It is the Organization's-goal to maintain financial assets ..to meet SO -days of operating
expenses which approximates $6.7l6,,p00 and $4,360,000, at February 28, 2022 and
202Crespectively. The Organizatlori has a line of credit with $445,650 arid $219,972,
available to borrow on at February 28. 2022 and.'2021, respectively.

15



-MERRIWAGK COUNTIES-INC.

NOTES TO CGNSOLIDyfVTED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED F.EBRUARY.28. 2022 AND 2021

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable are- staled al the arriount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still'outstanding after management
bas used reasonable, collection efforts are vyritten off through a charge to the. valuation
allowance and a credit to'accounts receivabie. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
was estimated, to be zero at February 28. 2022 and 2021.. The Organization has no"
policy for charging interest on overdue accounts.

REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received in .advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions 'being met aggregated
$1,537,802 and $1,036,941 as of February 28. 2022 and 2021, respectively.

RETIREMENT PLAN ,

The Organization ha^ a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees. The cost of the. plan is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 28, 2022 and 2021
totaled $186,976.and $193,103. respectively.

LEASED FACILITIES
Facilities occupied by the Organization for its community-service-programs are leased
under Various operating leases. The- lease terms -rangie. from month to month to twenty
year^. For. the year ended' February 28. 2022 and ,20.21. the. annual lease, expense for
the leased facilities was $544,299 and $5.42,317. respectively.

The approximate future rhlnimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows;

Year Ended

February 28

2023

,2024

2025

2026

2027
Thereafter

Total

■Amount

$  478.248
41-9.395
245.036

88,762
88.762

688.217

S 2.008.422

16



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR-THE YEARS-ENDED FEBRUARY 28..2022 AND 2021

7.

8.

9.

ACCRUED EARNED. TIME

The-Organization has accnjed a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have;eamecJ. and vested with the-empldyees in the afnount.of $660,158 and $415,580 at
February'28. 2022 and 2021, respectively.

BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a'
bank' that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments based
on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rale (3.25% and 4.-75% at February 28, 2022 and
.2021, respectively) plus 1%. but not less than 6% per annum.. The line is secured by all
the Organizatiori's assets. There was a balance' of $154,'350 outstanding at February
.28. 2022. There was no balance outstanding at Februaf^ 28. 2021.

The Organization has an additional revolving line of credit: agreement (the line) in the
amount of $400,000. with a bank that is due on demand.. T^e line calls for monthly
variable-interest payments based on the LIBOR rate (2.41.% and .2-.62% at February 28,
2022 and .2021, .respectively). The line is secured by all the Organization's assets.
There was no balance outstanding at February. 28, 2022. There was a balance-of
$380,028 outstanding at February .28, 2021.

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the year ended February 28, 2022, apprbxirnately $13,200,000. (30%). and
$15,300;000 (35%), respectively, of the Orgarilzatiori's total revenue was received from
the Departmeni of Health and HurnanjServices and the. Departrnenl of Treasury. For
■the. year .ended February 28. 202.1, approximately- $.11,400,000. •■{42%). of the
Organizatio'n's total revenue was received frbrn., the. Department of Health and Human
Sen/ices.. The future scale and nature of the Organization is dependent upon continued
support fix>m these departments.

10. LONG TERM DEBT
Long temi debt consisted of the foilowirtg as of February 28. 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

5.50% note payable to a financial institution in
monthly, installrrients for principal and interest, of
$1,634 through July 2039. The note
property oHhe Organization.

is secured by-
$  218,228 $ 225,459
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAMiBELKNAP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.75% note payable to a financier institution in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$13,912 through Jyly 2023. The notej is secured by
property of the Organization for Lakes
Center;

Region F'amily

3.00%. note payable to the City of Concord for
leasehold improvehrients in monthly installments for
principal and Interest of $747 through flrtay 2027. The
note is secured by property of the.Organizalion for the
agency administrative building renovations.

7.00% note payable to a bank iri montljily installments
for principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage
and assignment of rents and 'lea.se|s on prop'erty
located, in Concord, New Hampshire for Early Head
Start.

1.00% Paycheck Protection Prqgrarri.loan payable to
a bank in monthly installments, .for! principal and
interest of $7,511 through April. 2025.! $1,615,427 of
the proceeds received was forgiven during the .year
ended February 28, 2022. (See Note 11).

Non-interest .beating note payable, byj Sandy. Ledge
Limited Partnership to New Hiampshire Housing
deferred until June 1, 2034 or until'the project is sold
or refinanced or surplus cash is •available, The note is
collateralized by a mortgage on real es

Total long-term debt
financing cost

ate.

before unamortized deferred

Unamortlzed deferred financing costs

Less amounts due within one year

Long term portion

2022 .2021

219,279

/

1

375:827

t

42,958 .50,507

116,572 i;64.553

" 280.439 . .1,935,300

343.081 343.081

1.220.557 3,0.94,727

.(•5;803) (6.286)

1.214.754- 3.088,441

314.265 213.444

$■■ 900.489 £ •2.874.997
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11

12.

NOTES TO CONSOUID/|<TED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

The scheduled maturities of long-term c

Year Ending
February 28

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAP

ebt as of February 28, 2022 were .as. follows;

Amount

314.265

:236:212;

106.239

32; 177
■  18,840

512:824

^  1-220.557

In April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $1,935,300
under the ;Paycheck. Protection Prograijn ("PPP"). Jhe PPP, was established as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARES.Act^').

On Septernber 14. 202-1. the Organization received partial forgiveness :in-the arnount of
$1.615,427. The forgiven .proceeds are] includ.ed in; income for-the year ended February
28, 2022. The remaining $312,873 has been converted td.;a loan', due' in 44 monthly
payments of principal and interest at a rate of 1 %. The loan -will mature in April 2025.
The outstanding balahee on the PPP loan at February 28, 202-2 is"$286j439. (See Note
10).

PROPERTY AND EQUIPiVIENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 28. 2022 and 2021:

Land

Building and improvements
Equiprhent'ahd vehicles-
Construction iri process

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Depreciation expense for the -years
$566,151 and .$458.00'9, respectively.

2022 2021.

$ 279,340 $  279.340

7.,089;459 6,867,176

6;3'35i485 6.117,020

.  41.401 18.126

13,745,685 13,281,662
7.528.363 7.639.290

■?. 6217.322 $  5.642.372

ended February 28, 2022 and 2021 totaled
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PROGRAM 3ELKNAP -

NOTES TO GONSOLID/jklEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

13. CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives grant funding from various sources..Under the terms of these
agreern'ents, the Organization is required to use. the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
-not to have beeri 'made in compliance [with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to, repay the funds. ,No provisions have -be.en made for this
contingency because specific amountsl if any, liave not been determined or assessed
as of February 28, 2022.

14. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are'available for the follovvjng .specific program
services as of February 28, 2022 and 2021:

NH Food Pantry Coalition .
Senior Center

Elder Services

Mary Gale
NH Rotary Food Challenge
Summer Feeding
Cpmrhon Pantry
Caring Fund
Agency - FAP
Agency Head Start
Agency - FP/PN
Community Crisis-
.Other Programs

Total net assets with donor restrictions

2022 2021

663 $  < ^ 663
143:437 142.817

68,427 499.201

25,629 -

5,064 5.058

^ 47,5.40 60,433
■ 5,512

8.792 8.791

,27.307 2,604

■222,258 224.847-
87.253- 87,387

350 .350
809 11.169
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NOTES TO CONSOLID>^TED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organizalion serves as-the management agent, fof the following .organizations-;-

Related Party

Belmorit. Elderly. Housing, Inc:
Epsom Elderly Housing, inc.
Alton Housing for the Elderly. Inc.
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly. Inc.
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc.
Kearsarge Elderly Housing. Inc..
Riverside. Housing ■Cofporation
Twin Rivers Community Corporation
Ozanam Placei InC:

TRCC Housing Limited Partnership I

Function \

HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
Property Development
Transitional Supportive

■ Services
Low Income Housing Tax

Credit Properly

The services performed-by the Orgaijiization included, marketing, 'accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties), HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The amount due from the related parties for operating activities (collectively) at February
28. 2022-and 2021 wais $324,385 a|nd $131,384. respectively,, and is included ip
accounts receivables. Additiohally, during the year ended-February 2'8. .2022, $65,488
was loaned to a related party and is recorded as an other asset oh the consolidated
statement, of financia) position..

16. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
.Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,.inc. has also- invested money
relating, to its Fix-it program In certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled $138,793 and $126,996 at February 28, 2022 and 2021. respectively,

ASC Topic No. 825-10. Financial Instruments,, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in .generally"
accepted acGOunting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value .Is
a maii^et-based measurement; not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
exparided disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 820,
the Organization may use-valuation techniques consistent with martlet, income and cost
approaches to measure- fair value, a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value; measurements. FASB ASC 82.6 establishes .a fair value,
hierarchy, which prioritizes-the inputs- used, in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Leyel' ,1 measurements and -the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
describ^.asfollows:
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-IVIERRIIVIACK
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NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDEb FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND.2021

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active martlets for identical lhvestments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than, quoted market
prices in active "markets, which .are either directly or indirectly observable as
.of the reporting date, arid fair value can-be determined through the. use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level -S. j Inputs to the valuation
situations where there Is little or

methodology, are unobservable inputs in

cKuauu..;^ vv.-.c.c - 'no market activity for the asset or liability
and; the reporting entity rnakes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing oLthe asset or liabilityincluding assumptions regarding risk-:

17:

At February 28, 2022 and 2021. the Organization's investments were classified as Level 1
and were.based on fair value.

Fair Value Measurements using Significant Observable Inputs (Level 1)
■  I

2022 ' 2021

Beginning balance - mutual funds
Total gains - mutual funds

Endir^g balance - mutual funds

$ 126.996

11.797

$ 109,078

17.918

S  138^793

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets -and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the shdrt maturity of .those instfum.erits.

The Organization'also had $1,000 Invested in a Partnership. The Lakes Region
Partnership for Public Health, m February 28. 2021. During the.year ended February 28.
2022, the Organization is no longer a partner and a final K-1 was received.

OTHER MATTERS

The impact of the novel coronavirus {,C0VID-19) and measures to preyent its spread
are affecting the Organization's business. The sigriincarice of the irnpact of these
disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organlzatipn's financial
and operational results, will be dictated by the length of tirrie that such disruptions
continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration of the COVID-19
pandemic, .and the impact- of governmental regulalions that might be imposed in
response to the pandemic.
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-IV1ERR1IV1ACK COUNTIES. INC.-

NOTES to CdNSOLiDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE. YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022 AND 2021

18. TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST
202-1. Community Action Program of Belknap-
.partnership interest In a low-Income housing

During the year ended February 28.
Merrimack Counties. Inc. acquired a
limited partnership. Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership.

The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the partnership at the date of
acquisition.

Date of Transfer

Gash

Cash* reserves

Accounts receivable

Prepaidexpenses
Property, net
Other assets

03/01/2020

■3;793
58.239
2.496

10,827
980,689

8.132

Total assets

Note payable
Other ilabiiities

Total liabilitles-

Partners' capital

Total liabilities and partners'
capital

19. RECLASSIFICATION
Certain afnouhts and accounts froni
reclassified to enhance the comparabill

$  1.063.576

$ 336,311
24.610

360;330 .

703.246

the prior year finandal statements have been
y with the presentation of the current year.
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COMIVIUNtTY ^-.IVIERRiMACKCQUNTIES■■INC■

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 2^. 2022 ANb.2021

20. SUBSEQUENT-EVENTS
Subsequent events are events or transactions, that .occur afteV the. consolidated
statement of nnaricial. position date, butjbefbre the consolidated financial statements are
available to be issued.,Recognized sutisequent events are events or transactions that
provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the consolidated statem.ent
of financial'position date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing
consolidated financial statements. Non-recognized subsequent events are events that
provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the consolidated statement of
financial position date, but arose after that date.. Management has evaluated
subsequent events thhDugh September 8, 2022, the date the consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued.
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SUPPLEtVIENTAL INFORlVIAtlOKi
I

(See independent Auditors' Report)
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N0TE1

N0TE2

NOTE 3.

NOTE 4

COUNTIES.INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of-federal'awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award actiyity of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack,Counties. Inc. under program.s of the federal government for the year

'ended February 28. 2022. The! Information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
.Part 200. Uniform Adminlstratiie :Requiremehts, Cost Principles, .and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uhlfprm Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected, portion of the operations of Conimunity Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Courities. Inc., it is.not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or Cash flows of the Organization.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule ere reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures! are recognized following the cost .principles,
contained in the dniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are nof
■aliowable or are limited as to reimburserhent; Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits rhade in the normal coursfe of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

INDIRECT COST RATE
Community Action Program Belknat^Menrimack Counties. Inc. has elected not to
Use .the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

FOOD COMMOPmES AND VEHICLES
Ndnrnohetary assistance is repjorted in the Schedule at the fair value.of the
commodities received arid disbursed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPUANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUOmNG STANDARDS

To the Board-of Directors
Community Action PhDgram Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc.
Concord. New Hampshire

We have audited. In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
Stales of America and the siandards applicable to .financial audits contained In Gove/nmeht
Auditing Standards issued by the Gomptroller Gerieral of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28. 2022, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year .then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statenhents, and have issued our report thereon
dated Septembers. 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community.
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing .an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community
Ihc.'s internal control.

Action Program BelknapTMerrimack Counties.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the-design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or. delect and correct, misstatements oh a timely basis. A rriateria) weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material mlsslatemenl of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basi.s. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
cpmbihatioh of deficiencies, in internal'control that Is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by .those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not desigrjied to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiericies. Given these limitations, during
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our audit we did not identify-any deficiencies in internal control thai we consider to> be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belkriap-.Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s financial s atements are free from material misstatement.
we perfdrmed tests of its compliance with eertairi provisions of laws.-regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliante with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of nohcompliance.or other
matters that are required to;,be reported under Government Auditing Standards:

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is-solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
cortipiiance and the results of that testing. -and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the. Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an 'integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control arid corripliance
for any other purpose.

■Accordingly, this cpmrriunicatipn is not suitable

Concord. New Hampshire
September 8, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPO
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RT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH.

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL qONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE lllNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord. New Hampshire

Report on CompHance for Each Major Federaf Program

Opinion on Each Major Federaf Program

We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrirriack, Counties, Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of Comrriunity Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s rhajor federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2022.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Community Action Program Be
material respects, with the types of corhpiiance

knap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. complied, in all
requirements referred to above that could have

a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February
28, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
}  '

We conducted oUr audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Governrnent Auditing Standards, issued by the ComptroHer General of the United
States; arid the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditpre' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
sectioin of our report.

We are required to be independent of Ccimmunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community Action
Program Belknap-Mem'mack Counties, inc.'s
referred to above.

compliance with the compliance requirements



ResponsibHities of Management for.Compliance

Management is responsible, for compliance with the requirements .referred to- above and .for the
design implemehtalio'n,.and maintenance of effective internal control over compliaricg with the
requirements of 'Jaws, statute.Si regulations,
agreements applicable, to Community. Action
federal programs.

rules, -arid^ provisions-of-coiitracts-or-grant
Program Belknap-^Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit.of Comp//ance

Our objectives.are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material nQncbmpliahce with
the compliance requirements referred "to above .occurred, whether-due to fraud, or error;-and

■ express an opinion on-Community-Action Program Belknap-Merrimack :Counties. Inc.'s
compliance based.on our atidit-Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing' Siandards, and, the Unifomi
Guidance will always defedt material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting fhDm fraud j.is higher than for that resqltitig from error, as
fraud may inyolye cbllusiori,, forgery.', interitional omissions, misrepresentations, ;or the oyerride
of internal control. Noncoiiipliance with the |compiiance requirements referred to- aboye is
corisidered material if there is-a ̂ substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it
would influence the judgment made, by a .reasgnable user of the report o.n-compliance about
Cpmrhunity Action Program BelknaprMerrimack Counties, Inc.'s cornpliari.ce- v\/Uh the
requirements of each major federal program a 5 a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with geriera.lly accepted auditing stand,ards;, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we;

•  Exercise professional Judgrnent and maintain, professional skepticisnri throughout the
audit

•  Identify and assess the risks^df rpate.rial- noncompliance, \whe.lher due to frdud: or error,
and design and perform audit procedilires' responsive to those risks. Such procedures

'  include examining, on a test, basis, evidence regarding Community Actlpri. Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s corripliance with the conripliarice requirements
referred to at^ve and performing such
the circumstances.

other procedures as we considered'necessary in

■ • Obtain ah understanding of Corriniuriity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control over corripliance. relevant to the audit .in. order to design audit
procedures thai are'apprdpriate in the| circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliahce in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not fpr the
purpose of expressing an.opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is"expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged wjth governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned, scope and timing.'"ofl the audit and any significant deficiencies and
materiai weaknessesJn internal control-over compliance that we identified during the audit.

I
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Report on internal Control Over Compliiance

\

A deficiency in internal control over compliance' exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or "employees, in the norrnal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on-a timely basis. A material weakness-in
internal coiitrol over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in "internal
control over compliance, such ̂ that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program' will not 'be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or aj combination-of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a. federal program that is less, severe
than a matefiai weakhess In internal control over compiiance. yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged vyllh-governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance'was for the lirnited purpose descnbed in
the Audit6rs"Respdnsibilities for the-Audit'of eompliance section .above and was not designed
to Identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that, might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal contrd! over compliance. Gjven these
limilatidris, during our audit we did not identify -any deficiencies lin. internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal ojritrol over compliance may. exist that have
not been identified;

Our audit was not'designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion pn the effectiveness of
internal control over corripllance. Accordingly. no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control ojver compiiance is solely to describe the scope of
our-testing of internal: control over compliance and the: results of that , testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is ndt suitable, for any.other
purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
September 8. 2022

,  f
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS, AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

SUiVlMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1; The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Cornrtiunily Action Program Belknapj-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

i  t

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit, of the financiai statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporiinig ̂ and- on
Compliance and ottier Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Stateniehts Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported.

3". No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Irlc:, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing S/andards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies In internal coritrol over major federal award prograrhs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
On Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. the auditors* report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Cornmunity
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Coun
major programs.

6. There were no audit fiiidings that are rec
section .200.516(a).

jes. Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion-oh all

ulred to be report^ in accordance with 2 CFR

7. The programs tested as major programs iriclude:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Aging Cluster 93.044, 93.045 and
93.053; U.S. Department of Transportation. Formula Grants for Rural Areas, 20.509;
U.S. Department of the Treasury. Emergency Rental Assistance Prograrn. 21.023.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B progranfis was $'1.223,554.

9. Cornmunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. was determined to not.be a
low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEIVIENTS AU

None

DiT

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGf^MS AUDIT

None
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COMMUNITY ACTION
■  ;

SUMMARYSCHEDULBOF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2022

material weakness

2021-001

Condition:, the financiai statements presented to the auditor at the beginning of fieldworl^
included accounts that had not been reconciled accurately or in a timely manner.

1  - - j
Recommendation: The auditors' recommend that the financial close process includes a review
of all significant accounts.

Current Sfafus: .Accounts ha.ve been reconciled accurately and in a timely mariner. Not a
repealed finding in the current year.
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Effective 11/10/2022

COMMUNfIT\^ ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. *
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dennis T. Martino, f res/denf
Board member since; 2/24/2005

Chris Pyles, Vice President
Board member since: 1/14/2021

Safiya Wazir, Treasurer
Board member since: 11/2/2016

f

A. Bruce Carri, Secretary/Clerk
Board member since: 3/12/2020

Heather Brown

Board member since: 1/15/2009

/Ashley Reed
HS Policy Council Chairperson
Board member since: 5/12/2022

Tracy Vergason
Board member since: 5/12/2022

Sara A. Lewko

Human Resources Director Merrimack

County-Commissioners
Board memljer since: 2/21/2001

David Siff, Esq.
Board member since: 10/2/2013

David Croft, Sheriff
Merrimack County
Board member since: 5/13/2021

Curront fisrj^l yftar {.Vl/22 -2/28/23) board meetings - 3/10/22, 5/12/22, 9/8/22.11/10/22.1/12/23

kthCAPOM BODn»22



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACKCOUNTIES.INC. ̂
EMPOWERING COImMUNITiES SINCE I96S

1
I

Department of Transportation
\

SPY 2024-2025 FTA Section 5310 RCC Program Applications

I

Key Personnel

Name

!

Job Title Salary •

Tcrri Paige Transportation Director $  72.497.62

Cindy Yanski Regional Mobility Manager .  $ 52,650.00

Rosa Bum

1
1

Travel TrainerADP Coordinator $  33,150.00

Jeanne Agri
i

Chief Executive OlTicer $ 145,916.10

Jill Lesmcriscs Chief Fiscal Officer $  108.297.00



Cynthia Yanski

SKILLS

APRIL 2019 •

PRESENT

OCTOBER 2012

■- APRIL 2019

^Project\program management

Advanced MS Office skills

Excellent presentation skills

Proficient report writer

Experienced grant writer

Effective communication style

Work well independently and with a team
I

Volunteer recruitment\management

Insightful and resourceful
First-rate customer service skills

Community Action Program Belknap Merrlmack Counties Inc.

Concord, NH

Mobility Manager

•  Responsible for the promotion, enhancemerit and facilitation of mobility systems
under the umbrella of the Mid-State ROC and CAPBMCl initiatives for seniors,
individuals with disabilities and the general public, through coordination of

;  services with transit providers and other stakeholders in the region.
•  Assists with unmet mobility needs and assessments, planning, fundraising, grant

writing, and resource development.

•  Identifies mobility barriers and solutions to Improve services, resolves unmet
needs, arid reports recommendations to the f*ilid-State ROC and to CApBMCI for

•  transit services.

Friends Program

Concord. NH j
Retired and Senior Vplunteerj Program Coordinator
•  Manage oversight of 150.RSVP volunteers maintaining compliance with the terms

and conditions of the grant and applicable federal regulations regarding program
Includi'ng volunteer training and supervision

• ' Plan and administer program activities to ensure project goals and objectives are
met

•  Design, organize and execute volunteer workshops and recognition events
•  Initiate and coordinate public relations activities to recruit volunteers and publicize

the program. Develop positive public relations and communications in the
community; provide and present informational programs to interested groups and
organizations.

•  Prepare newsletters, brochure/flyers, and other media materials
•  Significantly improved efficiency in the Caregivers.program by implementing a

ride scheduling software program and creating a volunteer opportunity within the
program to allow a portion of the day-to-day Caregivers Program tasks to be
completed by volunteers !

•  Established a Caregivers Program Advisory Group made up pf 7 dedicated
Caregiver Program volunteers to help drive the future of the program



Designed and implementecf an orientation program for all new and existing R5VP
volunteers

I

Created recruitment and health fair presentations with an emphasis on healthy
aging through volunteerism|

Updated our signature program brochures

Incorporated volunteer enrichment activities to further the benefits of volunteerism
through the Friends RSVP

NOV 2000 -

MAY 2011

program.

MicroEdge LLC

Concord, NH |
Senior Software .System Consultant

Implement and support
management database

a comprehensive financial, donor and grant
software system for charitable organization clients

•  Conduct data integrity analysis, code table setup, import data, create and set
up standard report templates including donor statements, development letters
and all financial statements using MS Word or Crystal Reports

•  Provide software suppo'rt to existing clients while maintaining the highest level
of customer service !

I  •

•  Design trainings and new feature presentations from start to finish - research,
prepare and deliver j

I

•  Valued membisr of the Quality Assurance\Upgrades team

•  Evaluate client database setup and office procedures for potential efficiency
optimization; online and in-person at client sites throughout North America

Progress. SQL. GoToMeeting, GoToAssist. Salesforce. Webex, Power Point.
Outlook, Word, Excel. Access, Publisher, .Net, OpenAir, Google Analytics,
Windows OS, DOS. Macros, Adobe Acrobat, VBA, Crystal Reports

Client Service Administrator

•  Manage the Help Desk via a 10-line phone system, email and online support
options. Triage the support calls to determine call back priority. Enter lower
priority calls into the support call queue in-house database. Transfer higher
priority calls for direct support.

•  Maintain the support call database to perform quality control and correct
inconsistencies to maintain data integrity.

• ' Technical support-system updates and upgrades, Windowrs help,'install
patches and system upgrades and other technical related support calls and
FIMS software non-financial support." '

Progress, Oracle, Power Point, Outlook, Word, Excel, Access, .Net, Windows
OS, DOS. VBA, SQL, Adotie Acrobat. Crystal Reports. Carbon Copy

Administrative Assistant

' • Perform ail clerical duties for the office

•  Manage multiple-line pJone system for the 157person staff
I

•  ■ Prepare all mailings and training documentation

«. Organize and maintain office paper and electronic filing system
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Rosa Burtt

Objective

Utilize my language and teaching skills to assist others with language barriers.

(yiimmary

Years of personal experience living Md relating to people from different back
grounds and cultures. I . . . . . .
10 years of experience teaching and ̂ aching individuals and helping them achieve
their goals.
Currently teaching and tutoring student of all ages, including retirement age
individuals who require much repetition, guidance and patience.

Experience

Privaie Spanish Tuior
2006 - Present

LondomUjTy Middle School, NH
Spanish Teacher, 2002-2005

HiUon Hotel, Taipei. Taiwan
Front Desk Agent, 2000

Taca International Airlines, Guatemala
Ticket Agent, 1999-2000

Education

Univcrsidad Francisco Marroquin, Guatcm^aOty- 1999
I

Colegio Evelyn Rogers, Guatemala City- 1993

KpfcrifiM

Available upon request

BA in Psychology



THERESA C. PAIGE, TRANSIT DIRECTOR

Professional Experience

Transportation Director July 2019 - Current
Community Action Program Belknap & Merrimack Counties, Inc.
As the Transportation. Director for Community Action Program Belknap &
Merrimack Counties, Inc. (CAPBMCI) I am responsible for all aspects of
operations for Concord Area Transit, (CAT), a fixed route rural public
transportation service which is funded with a variety of federal, state,
county, and municipal funding. This funding includes: FTA 5311, and 5310
RCC grant funding through NHDOT; BEAS Title III funding; Hedicaid
reimbursed rides and a variety of other grant funding, All of these funding
sources have extensive operating and reporting requirements.

In addition I am responsible for the orjgoing tasks of: budgeting; employee
hiring, training and retention; marketing and community outreach; vehicle
maintenance; securing advertisers for signs on the buses; creating and
updating policies and procedures; route scheduling design; determining
eligibility for the ADA Paratransit service attached to CAT and processing
invoices for both' accounts payable and accounts receivable. '

I am also responsible for the operatiorjis of the Concord Senior Transit
service which is a demand response service in Concord, Penacoqk and
Suncook for seniors aged 60 and olderj and the Rural Transportation Services
(RTS) vehicles and drivers which provide demand response service to senior
aged 60 and older throughout Belmont and Merrimack counties. CAPBMCI
also runs a Volunteer Driver Program that covers all of Belknap and
Merrimack counties. I also supervise the activities of the 5310 RCC funded
Mobility Manager who provides services throughout the Mid-State RCC
region.

Transit Director Feb 2017 - July 2019
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

As the Transit Director.for Sullivan Coijjnty Transportation (SCT) I was
responsible for all aspects of operations for a rural public transportation
service which is funded with a variety of federal, state, county, and
municipal funding. This funding included: FTA 5311, and 5310 RCC grant
funding through NHDOT; BEAS Title III funding; Medicaid reimbursed rides
and a variety of other grant funding. /^Il of these funding sources have
extensive operating and reporting requirements.



In addition I was responsible for the ongoing tasks of: budgeting; employee
hiring, training and retention; marketing and cornhnunity outreach; vehicle
maintenance; securing advertisers for signs on the buses; creating and
updating policies and procedures; route scheduling design; maintaining a
FTA compliant drug & alcohol testing program and processing invoices for
both accounts payable and accounts receivable. The transportation service is
based in Claremont NH, with three fle)c route systems that run in Claremont,
Charlestown and Newport. There is also a Demand Response "Dial-A-Ride"
service that runs in the larger dlaremont area. SCT also runs a Volunteer
Driver Program that covers all of Sullivan County.

Independent Contractor ' July 2013 - Current
RLS & Associates, Inc. ^ i
I Provide training on a variety of transit-relating topics, including Passenger
Assistance and Refresher,. Erhergency Procedures, and Defensive Driving.

Associate and RTAP Liaison

RLS & Associates, Inc.
I was the in-state, Program Liaison anc

Nov 2013 - Feb 2017

I
lead trainer for the New Hampshire

and Massachusetts RTAP Programs. As lead trainer I instructed in a variety
of DOT required training areas'includirig: Passenger Assistance and
Refresher; Emergency Procedures; Defensive Driving; Pre-trip Inspections;
Drug & Alcohol Reasonable Suspicion fjleferral'and several customer service
based topics. I scheduled all trainings and coordinated with RLS contracted
trainers to ensure that required trainin'gs were available at regional training
sites throughout New Hampshire and fjlassachusetts. In addition I was
responsible for state DOT technical assistance compliance reviews for FTA
Drug and Alcohol programs in NC, WI, VA, and NH and. several 5311 DOT
compliance reviews in NH.

}

I served as interim transportation director for Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. in 2016 when they agreed to take on the responsibility for the
only public transportation service in Sullivan County. This service had been
abruptly shut down when another social service provider in the region
ceased operations. In this,transitional position I provided all of the
traditional management activities ofa transit manager as well as the
additional responsibilities of repairing community relationships and
improving the service image. j
Regional Transportation Coordinator Sep 2013 - Nov 2013
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc.

Responsible for assisting the Mid
with collaborative initiatives that

Mid-State region.

-State Regional Coordinating Council
enhance transportation options in the



Performed outreach activities tO'engage stakeholders and educate the
public. j .
Served as the liaison to state and local transit groups.

Facilitated transportation coordination among public, private, and
volunteer transit providers and stakeholders to enhance options for
consumers.

Marketed transportation services available to the Mid-State Region
residents. |
Organized and completed local and regional needs assessments to
identify unmet transportation needs.
Reviewed barriers to transportation in the MidrState Region and-made
recomnciendations to resolve issdes.

Assisted with organizing and carrying out the activities of the Mid-
State RCC sub-committees. Assisted with the facilitation of meetings
as assigned.

Mobility Manager Sept 2010 - Sep 2013

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc.
•  Promoted, enhanced and facilitated access to transportation services,

Including integration and coordination of services for individuals with
disabilities, older adults, individuals with low English proficiency, low
income individuals and the general public.

•  Provided coordinated services toj human service organizations,
including individualized travel training and trip planning activities for
customers.

• Advocated and, promoted the use of the WTS, CAT, and RTS transit
systems with the general public, the business community, and human
service organizations.

•  Researched, secured, and managed grant funding and donations to
support transportation services.

•  Maintained close working relationships with all passenger transit
providers in the region to improve ride referrals and collaboration of
existing resources.

• Worked to improve access to jobs and employment support services
by identifying and reducing barri'ers preventing use of transportation.

•  Assisted in the development of transportation resources information
including, but not limited to, bus' schedules, resource manuals,
brochures. Web pages, and signage improvements.

•  Presented transportation resource information at community events
and conferences.

•  Conducted outreach to community organizations to identify unmet
needs.



•  Provided monthly training to transportation staff on topics including
customer service, disability awareness and dealing with difficult
passengers.

Independent Living Services Director Jan 2002 - Aug 2010
Granite State Independent Living ^

•  Responsible for the supervision and day to day activities of the
Independent Living Services case management program. These
services iricluded peer support and counseling, skills training, and
advocacy. |

•  Responsible for the overall management of the Honne
Access/Modifications, Adaptive Equipment program, funded by grants
and individual donations.

• Devdoped and managed a travel training initiative to assist individuals
with disabilities gain better access to'public transportation.

•  Provided disability avyareness, people first language, and customer
service trainings to staff, community groups and transit providers.

•  Secured funding for.new and onrgoing programs, including grant
writing and reporting. ■

•  Supervised, coached, and evaluated a service deliver7 staff comprised
of diverse personalities, (includirig staff located off-site), assuring the
quality and consistency of services which were provided.

•  Promoted the use of GSIL services through outreach, to" the general
public, other service providers and professionals. Supervised the
development of brochures, presentation materials and other tools to
assist with outreach efforts.

•  Developed new services in response to needs evidenced in the market
place. Assessed the needs of the community, and conducted an annual
evaluation of consumer satisfaction with services.

•  Responsible for the preparation of quarterly and annual- reports and
budgets.

1996 ̂ 2001
Financial Case Manager
MIMS/Community and Vocational ̂ utreach Worker
White Mountain Mental Health and DD Services

•  Assessed financial needs of individuals and assisted them in
enhancing, securing, and maintaining State and Federal benefit's.

•  Served as a resource for other program staff handling benefits for
consumers.

•  Maintained personally supportive relationships with individuals and
their families, without encouraging unnecessary dependence.

•  Interfaced effectively with comrnunity supports on behalf of the client.



•  Coordinated and implemented treatment plans for mental health
consumers and their families.

•  Resolved routine client needs and problems in the community
independently.

EDUCATION

Certified Community Transit Manager (CCTM) through CCTA
Certified in Advanced Mobility Device Securement through the National
Transit Institute

Certified in Comprehensive ADA Paratransit Eligibility through the
National Transit Institute

Certified in Advanced Practices in paratransit Service through Easter
Seals Project Action '
Certified as Lead Trainer throug
Certified as FTA Drug & Alcohol
Supervisor

Certified Master Gardener through the UNH Cooperative Extension and
active presenter for the Master Gardener Speakers Bureau
Course work in Human Services|Springfield College, Manchester, NH
(2002-04) and New Hampshire Community Technical College (1997-
2001)

Q'Staint
Reasonable Suspicion Referral



Jeanne Agri

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

Versatile and experienced leader with highly developed communicotion skills: written, verbal and presentarional. Adept
in coaehmg and mentoring employees and colleagues as evidenced by my selection by the National OfFicc of Head Start to
serve as a mentor for new Head Start Directors. Committed to continuous improvement of activities to'ensure they meet

outcomes approvcd'by the board through strategic planning; creating goal-oriented systems and conformance with nil.,
local, stale and federBl guidance.

WORK EjXPERIENCE
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Concord, NH
Executive Director 1 2018-prcsent

•  Assures the organization has long-range strategy which makes consistent and timely progress towards meeting
the Agencies overall mission

•  Responsible for the general supervision of all grwt awards, ensuring that all statutory, regulatory, and /or
program and financial requirements arc met, that generally accepted accounting principles are applied, and
that all program and financial policies and procedures are adhered to.
Provide leadership in.developing programs, organizational structures and financial systems thai carry out the
instructions and policies authorized by the Board

•  Establish sound working relationships and cooperative arrangements with community groups, organizations
and ail funding sources impoitant to the developcncnt of the agency and programs.
Sec that the Board Director is kept fully informed and up to date on the condition of the organization and all
important Federal, State or local requirements impacting on the Agency and/or its programs.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
Education and nutrition Operations Director ^ 2016-2018

•  Coordinate, manage and monitor workings of Child Development, Women Infant and Children, and
Literacy Programs; as well as development of an agency wide Two-Generational Approach to services

•  Formulate, improve and implement departmental and organizational policies and procedures to
maximize output. Monitor adherence to rules, regulations, and procedures

•  Assist in the recruitment and placement of required staff; establishment of organizational structure;
delegation of tasks and accountabilities
Supervise staff. Including establishment of work schedules and monitoring and evaluating performance in
partnership with Executive Director'^
Assist in development of strategic plans for operational activity; implement and manage operational
plans

Director of Child Development Programs 2001-2016

Hire, coach and evaluate the performance of Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators, Center
Directors, Teachers and Head Start support staffj
Provide coaching, and learning opportunities for all employees focused on promoting, supporting and
improving early development of children from the prenatal stage to five years of age using research -
based practices [
Plan and implement strategic interventions with Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators and
Center Directors for sites needing administrative support and direction
Plan, coordinate and facilitate regular leadership meetings for evaluating and strengthening systems to
maintain the highest quality of services in compliance with Head Start Performance Standards
Develop internal structures, systems, and policies
including education, health, mental health, socia
transportation

supporting major content areas of Head.St«u1 program
services, parent involvement, nutrition, disabilities , and



Collaborate with managers and internal fiscal,department in the monitoring and'controi of component
budgets; identification and interpretation of Head Start and community needs; conformance to the
Performance Standards and otlier.regulatory requirements

Work in partnership, with internal departments'to support project goals and meet customerexpectations
•  Btablish and maintain relationships and collaborations with public school districts, systems of higher

education, and other community agencies and planners
•  Ensure adequate systems in place to maintain the highest quality of services to children and families in

compliance with Head Start Performance Standards
Ensure consistency in service delivery across the program with attention to inclusive practices and
integration of component areas; encourage continuous improvement of systems.

Quality Assurance Director/Co-Direclorfor Child Development Programs 1999-2001
•  . Established and managed a robust monitoring, analysis and evaluation system with well-defined results,

milestones, and targcu inclusive of Continuous Quality Improvement practices
Monitored for quality and compliahcc at Grantee and Delegate level

•  Worked closely with program Director to review, track and assess monitoring compliance throughout
program operations [

•  Developed and implements a written quality assurance and performance evaluation plan in conjunction with
Governing Board, Policy Council !

•  Interpreted and evaluated a variety of information to present it in meaningful oral or written form for
varied audiences and provide reliable analysis leading to sound decision-making

Area Manager/Education Manager 1997-1999

Supervision of various Child Care sites including direct supcrvisiou of Center Dlredui-s/Sile Managers
Coordinate personal and professional development and training plans for staff and ensure teaching staff
progress towards educaiionarrequiremcnts as supported by the Performance Standards
Documented and administered both positive and
Improvement Plans when warranted;

negative feedback and utilize Performance

Child Care Center Director/Site Manager
Supervised, mentored, coach and administered work plans and directives to staff

•  Communicated areas of performance improvement tostaffandprorhote training that reflected individual
needs of staff members and the team as a whole

1995-1997

Ensure program compliance with codes of state and local licensing agencies arid grant requirements

New Hampshire Technical College, Nashua, NH
Instructor

•  Taught Child Growth & Development"and assisted in curriculum development for Early Childhood
Education Program |

•  Planned and organized instruction to maximize documented student learning
•  Employed appropriate teaching and learning strategies to communicate subject matter to students
•  Modified, where applicable, instructional methods strategics to meet diverse student needs

EDU|CATI0N
Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Master's in Business Administration

Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH
Bachelors of Arts in Elementary Education

1995-1997

June 2017

198.1



1 Lesmerises

Profile

'essional bringing forth over 30 years ofExperienced and self-motivated Accounting Pro

valuable progressive non-profit experience. Looking for an opportunity to use my non-profit
experience to help guide an organization. Areas of experience range from cash management,
bank reconciliations, accounts receivable, fixed assets, accounts payable, payroll, audit
preparation, budget preparation, monitoring subrecipients, 403B pension compliance and audit
preparation, employee benefits, and system implementations. -

Employment Experience

/
10/21 - Present.

Chief Fiscal Officer. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

CAPBM is a not-for-profit with 25 million in revenue with 11 legal entities. The Agency has over 300
employees and holds S million in assets.

Oversee the daily activities of 6 fiscal staff, conduct budg'^r mpering.s, pre.pare work papers for annual
audit for agency and 10 hnii.sing projects, manage the daily cash flow of the agency and 10 housing
projects, prepare papehwork for monitorlngs conducted by various funding sources, and review
accounts payable input, journal entries, accounts receivable Input, and monthly billings.

10/17-12/21

Senior Accountant. Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.

Southern New Hampshire Services is a not-for-profit with 49 million in revenue with 30 legal
entities. The Agency has over 400 employees ind holds 84 million in assets.

.Conduct monthly budget meetings, bill funding sources monthly, prepare work papers for
annual audit, monitor subrecipients. prepare paperwork for monitoring conducted by various
funding sources, review accounts payable input and manage daily workflow, provide backup for
accounts payable and fuel assistance payable positions, prepare surveys for various
governmental agencies, prepare ACA forms, prepare paperwork for 403B annual audit and file



5500, member and secretary of the 403B Committee, instrumental in getting PaperSave up and

running within the Fiscal Department, prepare work papers for 26 housing programs

11/02-10/17

Staff Accountant. Community Action Program Belknap»Merrlmack Counties. Inc.
I

At the time of my employment. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties was a not-for-

profit with 20 million in revenue. The Agency had over 479 employees and held over 7 rriillion in assets.

Reconciled 36 bank accounts, billed funding sources monthly, prepared work papers for annual
audit, prepared paperwork for monitoring by various funding sources, prepared and entered

journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, reviewed daily accounts payable Input,
entered cash receipts in A/R system, provided backup for both payroll and accounts

payable/receivable pdsitions, managed daily workflow, and trained new accounting staff
members

1/00 - 9/02 I
Account Supervisor (for 2 Companies). Whole life. Inc.

Whole-Life, Inc. is a not-for-profit with 6 million in revenue. The Agency had over 140 employees and
held over 4 million in assets.

Prepared monthly and quarterly reports, yearly budgets, monthly invoices, work papers, and
cost reports, prepared and entered journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, and

billed Medicaid I

9/98 -1/00

Account Receivable Clerk'(for 4 Companies), CSN Financial, Inc.'

. Coded cash receipts, prepared monthly invoices', and prepared accounts receivable and
revenue work papers '

5/93-9/98

Assistant Controller. Biosvstems. Inc.

Collected past due accounts receivable both foreign and domestic, provided switchboard relief,

handled petty cash funds, audited salesmen expenses, cut accounts payable checks, prepared
journal entries, performed payroll functions



3/88-5/93

Business Officer. The Caring Community of Connecticut. Inc.

The Caring Community of Connecticut is a not-for-profit with 18 million in revenue.
!

Answered phones, filed correspondence, handled petty cash funds; typed correspondence,
coded cash receipts and disbursements, reconciled bank accounts, screened.jbb.applicants,
prepared work papers, and participated in administrator on-call program

Educational Background
I

1996-2000

Bachelor Degree in Accounting, Eastern Connecticut State University
Graduated cum laude

1992-1996 '

Associate Degree In Accounting, Three Rivers Community Technical College
Named to Dean's list, graduated .with high honors

1981-1985

fVlerrimack Valley High School

fylember of National Honor Society, named to Honor Roll .for 3 years

Volunteer Work

1/17-Present . j
Director on The Loudon Communications Council

Council is responsible for the distribution of a monthly newspaper to the residents of Loudon
and to maintain the Town of Loudon NH websjte. Also served as Treasurer of the Council for 2
years.


